



Solvency and Financial Condition Report 2020

Mediolanum International Life DAC, 4th floor, The Exchange, George's Dock, I.F.S.C., Dublin I, DOI P2V6

Registration No.: 255456 Registration Place: Ireland

Contents

Ex	xecutive Summary	3
A.	. Business and Performance	7
	A.1 Business and External Environment	7
	A.2 Performance from Underwriting Activities	8
	A.3 Performance from Investment Activities	9
	A.4 Performance from Other Activities	11
	A.5 Any Other Disclosures	11
в.	. System of Governance	12
	B.1 General Governance Arrangements	12
	B.1.1 Organisational Structure	12
	B.1.2 Board of Directors	12
	B.1.3 Changes in the System of Governance	13
	B.1.4 Key Functions: Roles & Responsibilities	14
	B.1.5 MIL Committee's	14
	B.1.6 Remuneration Policy & Arrangements in place	14
	B.1.7 Group Interaction	15
	B.1.8 Material Transactions	15
	B.2 Fit and Proper Requirements	15
	B.3 Risk Management System including Own Risk and Solvency Assessment	16
	B.3.1 ORSA Process and Risk Management System	17
	B.3.2 Risk Strategy & Objectives	18
	B.3.3 Risk Appetite and Tolerance	19
	B.3.4 Risk Identification, Analysis & Assessment	20
	B.3.5 The ORSA Process	20
	B.3.6 Risk Communication and Culture	20
	B.3.7 Risk Monitoring & Reporting	21
	B.3.8 Risk Mitigation	21
	B.3.9 Solvency Capital Management	21
	B.3.10 Risk Committee	22
	B.4 Internal Control System	23
	B.4.1 Compliance Function	24
	B.5 Internal Audit Function	25
	B.6 Actuarial Function	26
	B.7 Outsourcing/ Service Provision	26
	B.8 Assessment of Governance	28
c.	. Risk Profile	29
	C.1 Risks Covered	29
	C.2 Insurance Risk	30
	C.3 Market Risk	31

	C.4 Credit, Counterparty Default & Concentration Risk	.32
	C.5 Conduct Risk	.33
	C.6 Liquidity Risk	.34
	C.7 Operational Risk	.34
	C.8 Strategic / Business Model Risk	.35
	C.9 Other Material Risks	.36
	C.10 Stress Testing & Scenario Analysis	.37
	C.11 Prudent Person Principle	.38
	C.12 Any other disclosure	.38
D.	Valuation For Solvency Purposes	.40
	D.1 Assets	.40
	D.2 Technical Provisions	.42
	D.3 Other Liabilities	.44
	D.4 Alternative Valuation Methods	.45
	D.5 Any Other Information	.45
E.	Capital Management	.46
	E.1 Own Funds	.46
	E.2 Solvency Capital Requirement and Minimum Capital Requirement	.49
	E.3 Use of the duration-based equity risk sub-module in the calculation of the Solvency Capital Requirement	.50
	E.4 Internal Model Information	.50
	E.5 Non Compliance with the MCR and Non Compliance with the SCR	.50
	E.6 Any Other Information	.50
F.	Appendix 1 - Quantative reporting templates (QRTs) 2020	.51
G.	Appendix 1 - Quantative reporting templates (QRTs) 2019	.57



Executive Summary

Mediolanum International Life dac (hereinafter, also "MIL", or "the Company") presents the Company's Solvency and Financial Condition Report ("SFCR") under the Solvency II Directive as at 31 December 2020.

PURPOSE OF THE SOLVENCY AND FINANCIAL CONDITION REPORT

The Solvency II Directive was transposed into Irish Law as the European Union (Insurance and Reinsurance) Regulations 2015 (S.I. 485 of 2015) and the legislation entered into force on 1 January 2016. This report is intended to assist clients in understanding the capital position of MIL by providing an overview of the Business Model and Performance of the Company, its System of Governance, Risk Profile, Valuation for Solvency Purposes and Capital Management framework.

OUR STRUCTURE

MIL is the Irish life company of the Banca Mediolanum Insurance Group, authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland ("CBoI") to conduct life Insurance business under the European Union (Insurance and Reinsurance) Regulations 2015 (S.I. No. 485 of 2015). MIL has its registered head office in Dublin, Ireland. It also operates through its branches in certain other countries of the European Union under the right of establishment governed by the relative provisions of law. MIL is authorised to sell classes I, III and IV Insurance products (as per Annex I of S.I. No. 485 of 2015) and is currently selling unit-linked products in Italy and Germany and both index linked and unit linked products in Spain.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company has in place a robust governance framework that enables us to deliver on our strategy. Strong governance is essential to the sustainable growth of our business; it is at the heart of what we do. The ultimate Administrative Management Supervisory Body that has the responsibility for all of these matters is the Company's Board of Directors, with the help of various governance and control functions that it has put in place to monitor and manage the business. There are more details in section B.1.

SUMMARY HIGHLIGHTS

The financial year 2020 was a profitable one for MIL with profit before tax of $\leq 25,047k$ (2019: $\leq 19,388k$) while policyholder assets under management ("AUM") increased to $\leq 3,591,858k$ at end of 2020 in comparison to $\leq 3,239,511k$. 2020 saw strong sales in its regular premium business and Mediolanum Piu's with the launch of 6 of these products however Mediolanum Piu did not reach the heights of 2019, which was an exceptional year. The older book of Index Linked products in Spain and Germany continued to mature in line with the last few years, however 2 new Spanish Index Linked products were launched in 2020.

The sales of Mediolanum Piu products during the year and prior years resulted in increased management fees. Costs were also tightly monitored during the year in line with MIL's commitment to developing its business for the future. We continued to invest in our IT spend and particularly in Cyber security measures.



The profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 after taxation as per the Company's Financial Statements was €21,479k (2019: €16,711k).

BUSINESS STRATEGY

Looking ahead, our primary objective remains unchanged, to ensure that our policyholders achieve the long-term outcomes they expect, and we remain fully focused on this goal. We enter the new financial year with a healthy balance sheet and a broad range of capabilities which can adapt to changing policyholder appetites to enable us to remain competitive in rapidly adapting markets.

At MIL, we take pride in leveraging a proprietary R&D methodology called MedInSynC[®] to drive product creation. This process is run on a digital platform and allows for collaboration between our internal teams and external parties. This engagement pervades all phases of the product development lifecycle, from the new idea evaluation, through product design, feasibility analysis and validation and finally to product implementation. Utilising this process, MIL launched six new Mediolanum Più tranches during the year.

We remain focussed on growing top line sales while improving bottom-line profitability, however, we recognise the challenges that an environment of low interest rates and tight credit spread has on product creation. The Mediolanum Più suite of products remain the key driver of new business volumes for MIL. Mediolanum Più is an actively managed Unit Linked tranche product invested in Fixed Income securities, structured for a defined term, whose primary objective is to return invested capital at maturity while targeting the payment of a stream of periodic coupons over the life of the product. These products address the cohort of clients in search of yield and regular income at an acceptable risk

Our Distribution Network in Italy, Spain and Germany is central to our business model. Considering the decision of our German Distributor, Bankhaus August Lenz, to close its retail business, we have taken the opportunity to change and expand our reach in Germany. This has led to relationships with new Distributors and Brokers and this new channel affords us the opportunity to add new Independent Financial Advisors across Germany. The building out of the Infrastructure is now complete and now we have a number of distribution partners across Germany which the Company can use to grow the size of its Germany Premiums. We look forward to providing new offerings to a wider range of customers in the coming years, through our enhanced network.

The Company has continuously complied with all aspects of the Solvency II regulations from the date of first implementation on 1 January 2016. Throughout the year the Company has maintained a solvency ratio above the Solvency II limits and as at 31 December 2020 the Solvency Capital Ratio ("SCR") of the Company was 185% (2019: 194%). The Minimum Capital Requirement ("MCR") solvency ratio at 31 December 2019 was 738% (2019: 776%).

The below table outlines the eligible amount of own funds to cover the SCR & MCR and are all classified as Tier 1.

2020	2019	Movement	%
1,395	1,395	-	0.0%
58,729	58,729	-	0.0%
13,073	13,862	(789)	-6%
(1,700)	(17,500)	15,800	-90%
155,363	154,978	386	0.2%
21,479	16,711	4,768	29%
(21,450)	(1,700)	(19,750)	1162%
226,889	226,475	415	0.2%
122,925	116,693	6,231	5.3%
185%	194%	(0.10)	-4.9%
30,731	29,173	1,558	5.3%
738%	776%	(0.38)	-4.9%
	1,395 58,729 13,073 (1,700) 155,363 21,479 (21,450) 226,889 122,925 185% 30,731	1,3951,3951,39558,72958,72958,72913,07313,862(1,700)(17,500)155,363154,97821,47916,711(21,450)(1,700)226,889226,475122,925116,693185%194%30,73129,173	1,3951,395-1,3951,395-58,72958,729-13,07313,862(789)(1,700)(17,500)15,800155,363154,97838621,47916,7114,768(21,450)(1,700)(19,750)226,889226,475415122,925116,6936,231185%194%(0.10)30,73129,1731,558

* Out of the Result for the period ended 31 December 2019 there are dividends proposed of €24,500k (2019: €1,700k) which are pending payment subject to Central Bank of Ireland approval.

RISK PROFILE

Section C outlines our risk profile. It provides further details of the Board-approved risk appetite.

The SCR is split by risk category in the following table.

SOLVENCY CAPITAL REQUIREMENT (SCR)	2020	2019			
Underwriting Risk	75,018	70,543			
Counterparty Risk	10,743	8,354			
Market Risk	87,141	85,725			
Diversification Effects	(40,704)	(37,850)			
Operational Risk	8,287	6,591			
Deferred Tax	(17,561)	(16,670)			
SCR	122,925	116,693			
All numbers in €'000					

The Company's financial year runs to 31 December each year; Results are reported in Euro. All amounts disclosed in this document are in thousands as required by Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2015/2452.

MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS

2020, has been a year like no other for the world and our industry. In March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID 19 a pandemic. While COVID-19 triggered a shock to the world economy, not witnessed in living memory. Central Banks and Governments have stepped in to support their struggling economies, which were effectively put into stasis due to public health measures and repeated lockdowns. We have seen various geopolitical events which combined with the Pandemic, have contributed to an extraordinary year.

MIL has, like other financial services industry participants, had to address the multiple challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic but that it has done so successfully, through implementation of the ability to remote work for all of its staff (which has been achieved in a secure and controlled manner) and there was an initial impact on assets under management and consequently income, this has been addressed by subsequent market rallies.

The COVID-19 pandemic has created volatility in financial markets and economic uncertainty which has impacted individuals and businesses. The full impact on the Insurance industry is not certain at this stage. However, given the nature of the Company's business, the Company does not believe that Covid-19 will have a material negative impact on the shareholder's funds or claims payments as can be seen during 2020 where there was no unexpected increase in surrender or death claims. New Business sales were lower in comparison to the prior year, but this was mainly due to market conditions as it was difficult to structure attractive yields for Mediolanum Piu products, which was the main drive of new business in 2019. The recent volatility in financial markets impacted the valuation of the Company's investment portfolio in early 2020 but recovered at the year end, but there could be further volatility in the future. However, in 2020 the Company has not been materially impacted and given the unit-linked nature of the business any reduction in the value of policyholder assets will be offset by a similar reduction in linked liabilities with no net impact on shareholder's funds.

See section C.12 for details of actions and monitoring by the Company.



A. Business and Performance

A.1 Business and External Environment

Company Registered Address is:	MIL is regulated by:	MIL's External Auditor is:
Mediolanum International Life dac, 4th Floor, The Exchange Building, IFSC, Dublin 1, Ireland	Central Bank of Ireland, North Wall Quay, Spencer Dock, Dublin 1, Ireland	Pricewaterhouse Coopers, Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm, 1 Spencer Dock, North Wall Quay, Dublin 1, Ireland

SHAREHOLDERS:

The sole shareholder in the Company is Banca Mediolanum S.p.A. which holds 100% of the share capital of the Company. Banca Mediolanum S.p.A. is listed on the Milan stock exchange, it is a constituent of the FTSE MIB 40, and it is the holding company of the Mediolanum Group (the "Group"). The structure chart of the group is below.



A.2 Performance from Underwriting Activities

The Company is currently writing life assurance business in Spain, Germany and Italy on a freedom of establishment basis. The profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 after taxation as per the Company's Financial Statements was \notin 21,479k (2019: \notin 16,711k) and before taxation was \notin 25,047k (2019: \notin 19,388k). The profit for 2020 results from a mixture of new business and the existing unit linked and index linked portfolio. The total assets as at 31 December 2020 were \notin 3,755,512k (2019: \notin 3,380,596k).

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards FRS 102: The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland ("FRS 102") and FRS 103: Insurance Contracts ("FRS 103"), which the company adopted from 1 January 2015 and Irish statute comprising the Companies Acts 2014 and the European Union (Insurance Undertakings: Financial Statements) Regulations 2015.

MIL's assets under management (AuM) have increased by 11% which was positive given the pandemic and market conditions in early 2020. MIL had another profitable year with Profit before Tax increasing by 29% and total assets increasing to \leq 3.8 billion.

The figures below are presented on a Solvency II line of business basis, i.e. Index Linked and Unit Linked insurance.

The figures below have been taken from the Company's most recent financial statements which were approved and signed on the 23rd February 2021.

Premium written by class and by territory for the year ended 2020 (with comparatives for 2019) were as follows:

Product Type	Year	Italy	Spain	Germany	Total
Unit Linked	2019	44,008	119,427	10,013	173,448
	2018	41,667	104,088	13,274	159,029
Med Piu	2019	937,457	-	832	938,289
	2018	638,176	-	500	638,676
Index Linked	2019	-	40,000	-	40,000
	2018	-	-	-	-
Total	2019	981,465	159,427	10,845	1,151,737
	2018	679,843	104,088	13,774	797,705
	All numbers in €′000				

The above table reflects the continued sales of Mediolanum Piu in Italy in 2020, although as previously mentioned they didn't reach the heights of 2019, and the increase in Spanish and Italian premiums particularly in our regular premiums business which can be seen below.

Premiums written can be Single or Regular Premium in nature. Gross premiums written during 2020 and 2019 are represented below:

Gross Premium Written	2020	2019		
Single Premium	318,220	996,427		
Regular Premium	173,289	155,309		
Total	491,509	1,151,736		
All numbers in €'000				

Gross claims during 2020 and 2019 were:

	2020	2019			
Claims paid*	183,053	330,733			
All numbers in €′000					

	2020	2019	
Death Claims	15,380	13,756	
Maturities	25,784	26,629	
Surrenders	111,228	265,492	
Coupons	30,661	24,856	
Claims Paid*	183,053	330,733	
All numbers in €'000			

*Claims Paid does not include the movement in claims to be paid

Of the claims paid in 2020, €108,599k (2019: €265,492k) related to surrenders. Surrenders were higher in 2019 mainly due to an initiative launched in the last quarter of 2019 where MIL policyholders in certain products where given an option to surrender early without surrender fees, €167,974k of surrenders resulted from this initiative.

A.3 Performance from Investment Activities

The Company has appointed as its investment manager Mediolanum International Funds Limited (MIFL), a group company. MIFL provides portfolio management services to the Company with respect to both Shareholder and Policyholder assets.

The Company is required to maintain assets to match its policyholder liabilities at all times. The following investments, cash and cash equivalents, other assets and liabilities are held to cover technical provisions for linked liabilities. The Company has no investments in securitisations.

Policyholder Assets	2020	2019
Investments in UCITS	1,426,328	1,273,415
Management Fees from Unit Linked Funds	(14,072)	(10,817)
Cash/Assets held to cover linked assets	63,507	23,458
- Bonds	1,986,358	1,856,036
- Options	1,004	2,188
- SICAV	66,549	70,941
- Swaps	(7,616)	(9,277)
- Certificates	36,853	41,120
- Forwards	30,457	(10,556)
- Certificates	2,492	3,002
Total	3,591,860	3,239,510
All numbers in €'000)	

We also note the Shareholder Assets.

Shareholder Assets	2020	2019		
Debt Securities	18,027	26,834		
Deposits with credit institutions	57,151	55,545		
Linked assets held by Shareholder:				
- Bonds	137	-		
- Options	15	1		
- Swaps	(23)	(2)		
- Certificates	147	592		
Total	75,454	82,970		
All numbers in €'000				

In accordance with FRS 102, the investments have been classified as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.

Investment income comprises dividends, interest and other income receivable, realised gains and losses on investments and unrealised gains and losses. Movements are recognised in the profit and loss account in the period in which they arise. Dividends are accrued on the date notified. Interest is accounted for on a time proportion basis.

Investment income by asset class for 2020 and the comparison for 2019:

Investment Income by Asset Class	Income	Unrealised	Net
2020	income	Gain/Loss	Gain/Loss
Government bonds	7,154	(6,304)	(5,254)
Corporate Bonds	112,578	(94,672)	(28,944)
Collective Investment Undertakings	3,351	28,117	23,884
Structured Notes	986	291	818
Cash and Deposits	-	26,016	(7,623)
Call options	-	(1,144)	(24)
Collateralised Securities	0	(232)	(249)
Forwards	-	40,734	0
Swaps	0	1,493	38
Other investments	421	(453)	0
Total	124,492	(6,154)	(17,355)
All numbers	in €'000		

Mediolanum International Life dac

Investment Income by Asset Class 2019	Income	Unrealised Gain/Loss	Net Gain/Loss	
Government bonds	7,878	(222)	(1,141)	
Corporate Bonds	91,606	40,855	(33,595)	
Collective Investment Undertakings	4,640	174,844	9,925	
Structured Notes	3,036	1,878	541	
Cash and Deposits	1	-	-	
Call options	-	114	85	
Collateralised Securities	165	29	3	
Forwards	-	7,063	-	
Swaps	791	478	-	
Other investments	232	570	-	
Total	108,349	225,609	(24,183)	
Total All numbers		225,609	(24,1	

The investment performance in 2020 in comparison to 2019 saw the following:

 Income has increased during the year mainly as a result of our increased portfolio and holdings in Corporate Bonds.

Higher losses in comparison to previous year mainly due to significant market impacts in early 2020 however there was significant recoveries in the latter part of the year.

A.4 Performance from Other Activities

Income for the Company includes a fund management fee which is charged to investment linked contracts for contract administration services and investment management services and other services related to the administration of investment linked contracts. Fees are recognised as revenue for the services provided. A unit trust management fee rebate was also received by the Company. Fund Management Fees have increased in comparison to 2019 due to the launch of all the Med Piu products in the last few years. These fees are shown as follows:

Other Technical Income	2020	2019		
Fund Management Fee	28,723	23,191		
Unit Trust Management Fee Rebate	12,582	11,751		
Other income	3,084	2,918		
Total	44,389	37,860		
All numbers in €'000				

A.5 Any Other Disclosures

There are no other material matters in respect of the business or performance of the Company during 2020.

B. System of Governance

MIL has been authorised for classes I, III and IV of insurance (as per Annex I of S.I. No. 485 of 2015). MIL became a Designated Activity Company in February 2016 and changed its name to Mediolanum International Life dac as required by the Irish Company Act 2014. Prior to this the company was known as Mediolanum International Life Limited.

B.1 General Governance Arrangements

This document has been prepared in accordance with the Solvency II Directive as transposed into Irish law, EIOPA guidelines and the Central Bank of Ireland's Domestic Actuarial regime and Related Governance Requirements. Other regulatory requirements naturally apply including inter alia, Data Protection, AML/CTF, Fitness & Probity Standards, etc.

B.1.1 ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The following chart provides an overview of the central functions and bodies within the overall governance system as well as their major tasks and obligations.





The Company is managed and supervised by its Board of Directors (also, the "Board"). The composition and operation of the Board adheres to the requirements of the Corporate Governance Requirements for Insurance Undertakings, 2015. There are five Directors, three of whom are Irish residents. The Board comprises one executive director, two non-executive directors and two Independent Non-Executive Directors (one of whom is the Chairperson). The Board of Directors ensures the implementation of a strong internal control system and enterprise-wide risk management framework. The Board develop and approve the strategic vision for the business and empower the executive to implement same.

The Board retain responsibility for strategic business decisions, and delegate day-to-day responsibility for the other managerial functions to the Company's management (in particular to the General Manager), who monitors the operations of the Company.

The responsibilities of the Non-Executive Directors include offering impartial advice on the following:

- Scrutinising the performance management and consolidating agreed goals and objectives of management
- Ensuring that financial information is accurate, and the implemented controls and systems of risk management are robust and defensible

- Playing a central role in appointing and where necessary, removing senior management, along with succession planning
- Representing shareholder interests to manage and mitigate conflicts of interests and any possible agency-principal problems
- Oversight of remuneration process in place

B.1.3 CHANGES IN THE SYSTEM OF GOVERNANCE

There were no changes made during the period to the system of governance. On the 30 March 2020, Sylvia Cronin was appointed to the Board as a new non-executive director and chairperson, to replace Jack Casey who resigned from these positions on the same date. Mark Burke resigned as Chief Risk Officer on 27th January 2021. His replacement is due to start in early April and the role is being covered by the General Manager in the interim.



B.1.4 Key Functions: Roles & Responsibilities

Below we identify the key functions within the company and briefly outline their primary roles and responsibilities.

B.1.5 MIL COMMITTEE'S

The current committee in operation in the Company are as follows:



The Risk Committee and Audit Committee are Board Sub Committees and report directly to the Board. The Product, Operations and Projects Committee are internal Management committees.

B.1.6 REMUNERATION POLICY & ARRANGEMENTS IN PLACE

The MIL Remuneration Policy reflects the Company's objective of ensuring that all key identified staff carefully evaluate the risks inherent in all decision making and ensuring that decisions are in line with the Company's business strategy and values. It ensures that the Company is able to attract, develop and retain high-performing and motivated employees in a competitive and international market. It endeavours to ensure that employees are offered a competitive remuneration package in order to ensure the company meets its long terms business objectives. The policy is consistent with and promotes sound and effective risk management by having a business model which by its nature does not promote excessive risk taking and defines performance goals and objectives for all employees that are aligned with the business.

There are two remuneration components (i) Fixed remuneration is determined on the basis of the position and role of the particular employee, including responsibility and job complexity, performance and local market conditions, (ii) Variable remuneration is performance based which motivates and rewards employees who strengthen long term client relations and generates income and shareholder value. It promotes sound risk management and does not encourage excessive risk taking. Other additional benefits include company pension plan, life assurance and permanent health insurance. MIL has a maximum ratio of Variable Remuneration to Fixed Remuneration and this is set out within the Policy.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors approve the Remuneration Policy each year and review versus previous years to ensure it is consistent with and promotes a sound and effective risk management framework and does not encourage excessive risk taking.

B.1.7 GROUP INTERACTION

MIL is part of the Mediolanum Insurance Group and adopts Mediolanum Group methodologies and processes pertaining to the Solvency II process, wherever possible. Nevertheless, the Solvency II processes at a local legal entity level has full regard to MIL as a stand-alone legal entity and takes into account the expectations of the Central Bank of Ireland as the lead supervisor of MIL.

B.1.8 MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

The Directors approved the declaration of a dividend of €21,450k on the 23 February 2021(2019: €1,700k) to be paid to its shareholder, Banca Mediolanum S.p.A., subject to approval from the Central Bank of Ireland. An interim dividend of €15,000k was also paid during 2019.

During the year the amount paid to the Directors for services as directors and other emoluments was €209k (2019: €159k).

B.2 Fit and Proper Requirements

MIL incorporates the provisions of the Central Bank Reform Act 2010 Part III in its recruitment process. MIL is also cognisant of the wider EIOPA Fit and Proper requirements (Article 42 of Solvency II Directive) and ensures that these are incorporated into its internal regime.

All proposed appointments which are prescribed PCFs by the Central Bank's Fitness and Probity Standards (the "Standards") require prior approval from the Central Bank of Ireland. There is no requirement for prior approval to be received in relation to those proposed appointments which fall within the definition of Controlled Functions ("CF") prescribed by the Standards however MIL must be satisfied that all such appointments are meeting fitness and probity standards set out by the Central Bank. The Standards require that persons performing CF and PCF roles:

- are competent and capable of performing the role;
- act honestly, ethically and with integrity;
- are financially sound.

MIL has a Fit and Proper Policy which is approved by the Board annually. It incorporates the prescribed appointments process required by the Central Bank of Ireland and identifies who is in scope, how fitness and propriety will be assessed for both new employees and on an ongoing basis and the governance arrangements in relation to individuals being approved as being fit and proper (including MIL's requirements concerning skills, knowledge and expertise applicable to persons who effectively run the business).

In addition to the Directors, the following officers have also been approved by the Central Bank of Ireland and are all subject to the MIL Fit and Proper Policy as at 31 December 2020.

Approved Function
PCF11 - Chief Finance Officer
PCF12 - Head of Compliance
PCF18 - Head of Internal Audit
PCF14 - Chief Risk Officer
PCF48 - Head of Actuarial Function
PCF8 - Chief Executive
CF2 - Money Laundering Reporting Officer

The company has in place a policy which identifies roles that are "Control Function" and ensures that these designated individuals are fully aware of their responsibilities.

B.3 Risk Management System including Own Risk and Solvency Assessment

The Solvency II Directive requires insurers, as part of their risk management system, to perform an own risk and solvency assessment (ORSA). This assessment requires MIL to properly determine its overall solvency needs to cover both short and long-term risks. The risk-based approach requires, amongst other things, that MIL holds an amount of funds commensurate with the risks to which it may be exposed and thus the ORSA represents MIL's opinion and understanding of its risks, overall solvency needs and own funds held.

The intention of MIL's ORSA is to enhance awareness of the interrelationships between the risks MIL is currently exposed to, or may face in the long term, and the associated capital requirements. As a management tool it is designed to enhance risk awareness in the decision-making processes, forming an integral part of the overall business strategy and to assist MIL in obtaining a real and practical understanding of the risks it is assuming. MIL's ORSA helps to ensure that the company can continuously meet its regulatory capital requirements, as well as the internal capital targets in the face of changes to our risk profile and business plans, as well as the impact of developments in the external environment. The ORSA is prepared giving consideration to the local MIL business requirements however the results also feed into the Group ORSA.

The MIL ORSA process provides a review of the Solvency assessment for the company and the key risks impacting its business model over the short to medium term.

A risk identification exercise is performed to highlight those risks that should be captured within our Risk Appetite Framework.

Our framework uses the Standard Formula Approach. The capital requirement is determined as the 99.5% confidence level. This analysis is supplemented by a suite of portfolio stress tests which target key risks present within the asset portfolio at any one time. The stress tests performed will vary over time as the composition of the asset portfolio, and hence risk profile of the company, changes. The results of the stress testing analysis form a key input to risk management and investment decisions.

Mediolanum International Life dac

A further important component of the ORSA process is the forward-looking risk assessment. Here an analysis is performed which considers risks and extreme scenarios that could render the business model non-viable. The analysis captures both quantitative and qualitative factors and provides a framework by which the impact of all identified events can be mapped to our business plan and capital requirements.

The ORSA includes consideration of the suitability of the standard formula capital calculation. At this time Management believe that the standard formula calculation adequately captures the risk profile of MIL and that development of an internal model is not required. While an annual ORSA report is produced, the ORSA process is continuous and helps inform our business strategy and capital requirements over time. The Board is involved throughout the ORSA process, and partakes in setting the risk appetite, approving both long-term and short-term capital planning, and approving the suite of stresses that should be applied to our business model. The Risk appetite statement and Risk Register are subject to annual Board review to assess the on-going appropriateness of the business' risk profile and whether it is reflected accurately in the ORSA. The ORSA is formally approved by the Board on an annual basis or more frequently if required. The Group entity and MIL organisational units are also involved in the ORSA process.

B.3.1 ORSA PROCESS AND RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Board of Directors has implemented a risk governance framework that ensures an integrated and aligned approach between the following:

- the areas where it considers the institution to be especially vulnerable;
- the risk mapping and appetite of the institution; and
- the risk management system of the institution.

Our Risk Framework, policies and procedures governing the system of limits and thresholds for material risks governing MIL, describe the central elements of our risk management system. The ORSA Process and risk management system are subject to a continuous cycle of planning, action, control and improvement. Systematic risk identification, analysis, measurements, steering and monitoring as well as risk reporting are especially crucial to the effectiveness of the system as a whole.

The Risk Management framework describes, amongst other things, the major tasks, roles and responsibilities and the risk control process. The rules implemented additionally take account of the regulatory minimum requirements for risk management as well as international standards and developments relating to appropriate risk management.

The Risk Management Framework is designed to identify, measure, manage, monitor and report significant risks to the achievement of our business objectives. It is inherently linked to the ORSA Process. The core elements of our framework are as follows:





B.3.2 RISK STRATEGY & OBJECTIVES

The MIL risk appetite framework articulates the risk capital of the business available for deployment in pursuit of its strategic objectives. It defines the type of risk which MIL is willing to take on, and the level of risk that is considered appropriate for each of the main areas of risk that the Company faces.

The Company is only willing to take the minimum level of risk necessary to carry out its business and to be profitable. MIL will not take on risks in areas where the risks are considered to be excessive, or risks where the consequences of failure are deemed to be too severe.

The Risk Strategy is consistent with the Company Strategy and Business Plan. MIL seeks to constantly maintain and develop a holistic Risk management system to identify, control and promote awareness of all pre-existing and emerging risks. Analysing risks on a quantitative and qualitative basis enables MIL to ensure that risks are within our prescribed appetite, and these are monitored and controlled accordingly. It is also MIL's intention to maintain a risk management system which is commensurate to the nature, scale and complexity of the risks faced and to foster a suitable risk culture in the company.

DATA GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

MIL, in order to ensure the quality of the data used for the measurement and management of risk exposure, in line with the requirements of the regulations and the internal processes has implemented a data governance policy that allow compliance with the requirements of accuracy, completeness and appropriateness of the data used. The Data Governance policy sets out details of the Data Governance framework being followed within MIL.

1. In conjunction with the Risk framework in Mediolanum Irish Operations (MIO) the Data Governance Framework was enhanced in 2019 under the responsibility of a Head of Data Governance officer. The framework created considers the following key areas and a new Data Governance Policy was approved.

The Data Governance Framework adopted in this document is a set of guidelines to be followed during the data lifecycle from data creation to disposal. The framework covers the following key areas and guidance on each.

- Data Governance Principles
- Data Governance Working group
- Data Quality
- Data Lifecycle
- Data Usage
- Data Governance Steering Committee
- Data Protection

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The company places a high degree of importance in ensuring that our Risk Management process continues to keep pace with best-in-class solutions and practices available in the industry. We strive to keep abreast of the latest technological developments in risk management and integrate appropriate platforms where we identify an opportunity to enhance value to our existing Investment Risk Process. The company has recently added MSCI Risk Manager to our existing suite of solutions.

Risk Metrics is a scalable and highly flexible multi-asset class solution for enterprise wide risk management which combines efficient workflow, modelling transparency, and robust reporting tools to help manage risk across asset classes, from holding level to the enterprise level. Risk Metrics will enable us to ensure consistency of output across all our asset classes, as well as providing powerful diagnostic tools to interrogate and identify areas of risk, design stress testing scenarios, and perform what-if analyses to rebalance or hedge portfolios. This platform will enrich our existing suite of analytical and reporting capabilities and ensure we can tailor our solution to our clients evolving risk requirements.

B.3.3 RISK APPETITE AND TOLERANCE

The MIL Risk appetite is articulated in the Statement of Risk Appetite which is owned by the Board and reviewed at least annually or every time there is a material change of the risk profile of the business. MIL operates within the risk management system of the Group entity.

The risk appetite statement sets out various risk tolerances, which are in turn translated into risk limits that are observed by the business. The risk limits are documented in key policy documentation which are approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Risk Committee. These are maintained on an ongoing basis and reviewed not less than annually.

The methodology for defining the Risk Appetite and Capacity, adopted by MIL, is consistent with the Insurance Group methodology. MIL has reviewed this methodology and is satisfied that it is appropriate to the local legal entity and chooses to adopt a local risk-based approach where deemed appropriate. MIL has established a Strategic Solvency Target and incorporated two buffers ("level of confidence") around this to ensure deviations from appetite are effectively monitored and an acceptable tolerance level is in place.

The Risk Capacity is defined as the capital required in order to ensure sufficient coverage of the Solvency Capital Requirement, as defined by the Solvency II standard formula approach.

B.3.4 RISK IDENTIFICATION, ANALYSIS & ASSESSMENT

MIL assesses its underlying risk profile and whether these are within the risk appetite on an on-going basis. A Risk Mapping assessment is conducted to determine the risks applicable to the Company and ensure there is sufficient understanding and appropriate mitigation of same across the business. These are then mapped to the MIL Risk Register.

Key risk indicators, mitigating actions plans and controls are in place to manage the identified risks are detailed in the risk register, which is maintained by the Risk Department and is subject to annual review at a minimum. Risk identification is important for ensuring that our risk management consistently remains up to date. Emerging risks are also considered on a regular basis to anticipate the trends and evolutions that could impact the business profile of the company.

In principle, every risk that is identified and considered material is quantitatively assessed. Only risk types for which quantitative risk measurement is currently not possible or difficult are qualitatively assessed (for instance Business Model or Reputational Risk).

B.3.5 THE ORSA PROCESS

The ORSA Process is set out below:

- 1. Performing an initial assessment which encompasses:
 - Review of Business Objectives and Business Plan
 - Identification of risks to meeting the Business Objectives and Plan
 - Review of Risk Profile against the Risk Appetite
 - Consideration of appropriate scenario/stress tests to be applied to each risk area and whether the tests applied by the Solvency II standard model agree with MIL's risk profile
 - Apply more appropriate scenario/stress tests where appropriate / required
- 2. Consider the results of the ORSA conducted (based on the initial assessment) to determine if the Board is satisfied with the outcome or if additional analysis is required
- 3. Determine if the required regulatory capital is sufficient to ensure MIL has capital to mitigate its risks as identified in the ORSA process, or if additional capital review should be applied to ensure risk mitigation.
- 4. Determine whether the Business Plan is sufficient based on the results of the ORSA or if it should be amended
- 5. Approve the Business Plan and the ORSA.

The Risk Committee also assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities for:

- The effectiveness of the Company's risk management systems;
- The implementation of the Company's risk strategy and maintenance thereof;
- The oversight of Solvency II developments;
- The oversight of investment issues;
- The timely reporting of material deviations from defined risk appetite; and
- Monitoring the effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the Risk function

B.3.6 RISK COMMUNICATION AND CULTURE

MIL is very cognisant of the role played by culture in influencing behaviours within a business and the attitude of various business units to risk drivers and an appropriate management oe.f these. The key starting point for MIL is

having a high calibre Board in situ who are intimately aufait with the business model and operating environment of MIL and associated challenges. This is evidenced by the calibre of individuals sitting on the Board and both the experience and breadth of experience they bring to the process. Key factors considered by the Board in defining the business strategy for the company include:

- Ensuring alignment of the tone at the top with tone at the middle
- Ensuring ownership and accountability are adopted as priority behaviours for all staff
- Ensuring the forums exist to promote effective challenge and communication at all levels of the business

Risk communication within the business takes the form, for example, of internal and external risk reports, information on risk activities via the MedUncovered program and training opportunities for staff. The regular sharing of information between risk-steering and risk-monitoring units is also fundamental to the proper functioning of risk management.

B.3.7 RISK MONITORING & REPORTING

The monitoring off all identified material risks is a core task of the Risk Management function. This includes, inter alia, monitoring execution of the risk framework as well as adherence to the defined limits and thresholds and to risk-related methods and processes. Risk mitigating measures are implemented where necessary.

The results of the risk management monitoring exercise are captured within reporting packs that are provided to the business, including senior management. This pack also forms a recurring agenda item at the Risk Committee. The board receives a Management Information pack on a monthly basis, which includes a risk section, extracts from the above monitoring exercises and comments on key trends over the period. An ongoing "Early Warning System" monitoring using Key Risk Indicators is also included to feed the Risk Register summary on a monthly basis. Selected themes are also discussed at the Risk committee with the minutes forming part of the Board discussion.

Our risk reporting provides systematic and timely information about all material risks and their potential implications. The central risk reporting system consists primarily of regular risk reports, for example on the overall risk situation, adherence to the parameters defined in the risk appetite or on the capacity utilisation of natural catastrophe scenarios. Complementary to the regular risk reporting, immediate internal reporting on material risks that emerge on short notice takes place as necessary.

B.3.8 RISK MITIGATION

On a product-level, product design and underwriting processes help to identify and mitigate the behavioural risks and any possible anti-selection that may be exercised at the expense of MIL. Reinsurance transfers mortality and longevity risk to a reinsurance company as retention of this risk is outside our risk appetite.

MIL ensures that currently implemented risk mitigation activities and processes remain suitable by monitoring their continued effectiveness via a structured control framework.

The primary elements of the MIL risk mitigation techniques are identified further in the Risk Profile section.

B.3.9 SOLVENCY CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The above process helps to determine the Solvency requirements given the company risk profile and any consideration of risks identified during the process. The Risk Management Process also takes into account the Capital management activities of MIL. Consideration of capital and dividends are formally reviewed within the Capital Management and Dividend policy.

In the interests of our shareholders and clients, we ensure that our risks remain commensurate with our capital resources. Our quantitative and qualitative risk management provides a uniform framework for the evaluation and steering of all risks affecting the company. The central component in risk management is the economic capital which is calculated according to market-consistent measurement principles under Solvency II using the standard formula. MIL's economic capital reflects all risks that influence the development of the economic capital. They are split into underwriting risk, market risks, counterparty default and operational risks.

The Capital Management and Dividend policy sets out the principles used to direct and control capital management within MIL. The policy aligns with the Risk Appetite Statement, Capital and Business Plan, ORSA Process and related risk policies. The Company's key capital management objectives are to:

- Ensure that all capital management actions are consistent with MIL's Risk Appetite, business and risk strategy.
- Ensure the timely identification of any non-adherence to the policy.
- Ensure at all times that MIL's own funds are correctly classified and remain within established guidelines and limits as laid down by the CBI/Solvency II.
- Ensure that the issuance of own funds is in accordance with the medium-term capital management plan
- Ensure that the terms and conditions of any own funds item are clear and unambiguous.
- Ensure that any statement in respect of dividends takes the Company's capital position into account.
- Identify instances when distributions of own funds are expected to be deferred or cancelled.
- Preserve capital and where prudent contribute to the growth of surplus for the benefit of the shareholder.

The Company seeks to maintain a capital buffer in excess of its SCR to cover contingencies. It is intended that this buffer will enable the Company to withstand significant equity shocks and reduction in sales volumes without the need to raise further capital in the medium term. The intended size of the capital buffer is specified by the Risk Committee and approved by the Board, with details of the approved Capital Buffer outlined in the Risk Appetite Statement.

B.3.10 RISK COMMITTEE

As outlined above within the Organisational structure, the Risk Committee is responsible for the operational risk management, monitoring and co-ordinating risk management as well as fostering a suitable risk culture.



The Chief Risk Officer reports to the Board of Directors via the Risk Committee, and the Head of Actuarial function reports directly to the Board of Directors. The Risk Management Department is responsible for supporting the Chief Risk Officer in the capacity to monitor risk across the company.

The Risk Committee is responsible for:

- Recommending MIL's overall risk appetite and tolerance to the Board for approval;
- Reviewing MIL's risk framework and approving risk policies, standards and limits within the overall appetite and tolerance approved by the Board;
- Reviewing the MIL processes for determining risk appetite tolerance, monitoring compliance with approved risk tolerance levels and policies and the resultant action in respect of policy breaches.
- Reviewing the material risk exposures, including insurance, market, credit, operational, liquidity, reputational and economic and regulatory capital risks against the risk methodologies and management's actions to monitor and control such exposures;
- Reviewing the stress testing and monitoring management's response to the results;
- Receiving notification of material breaches of risk limits and approving the proposed remedial actions;
- Reviewing and approving any new transaction to be executed which meets the criteria established by the Board and applicable policies;
- Advising the Board on the risk inherent in strategic transactions and business plans and the impact on the Group's risk appetite and tolerance.

B.4 Internal Control System

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring a sufficient control system is in force by establishing, implementing and maintaining adequate internal control mechanisms designed to secure compliance with decisions, policies and procedures at all levels.

In order to be compliant with the provisions of all applicable laws, MIL maintains a permanent and effective control system to ensure the regularity of its services and activities, which provides for an effective internal reporting and communication of information at all relevant levels of the Company.

Responsibilities are based on a three-layered approach as detailed below:

- 1st Line of Responsibility: The first level is the risk management level, which is the responsibility of the business unit managers. These are the people responsible for making the primary decisions in relation to risk. They are the people deciding which products to sell, what controls to put in place and they have the initial responsibility for managing risk. They are responsible for reporting any instances of non-compliance with policies and processes to the Compliance Function. They should provide the risk management, internal audit, compliance and actuarial functions with all of the facts relevant for the performance of their duties.
- 2nd Line of Responsibility: This is covered by internal MIL staff (Risk and Compliance Functions) responsible for ensuring that the risk management processes / activities are carried out in compliance with the risk management framework. The risk management function is responsible for providing risk oversight and risk management assistance to the first line. The Compliance Function is responsible for monitoring breaches of the underlying policies and processes.
- **3rd Line of Responsibility:** This is covered by MIL Internal Audit Function who is responsible for providing independent assurance to the Audit Committee on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management framework, internal control system, operations and other elements of the system of governance. The Internal Audit activity evaluate the effectiveness and contribute to the improvement of the risk management processes. The Internal Audit Function will report any identified Risk, Control and Governance issue to the Audit Committee.

Mediolanum International Life dac

The Compliance function, the Risk Management function and the Internal Audit function are collectively known as the Internal Control functions. There are formal channels for these to communicate with each other, and reports to be made to their corresponding functions within the company. Proper information flows are in place in order to keep the Board of Directors informed of the outcome of the activities of the control system.

B.4.1 COMPLIANCE FUNCTION

Primary responsibility for the overall Compliance Program resides with the Head of Compliance, supported by the Compliance Department. The Compliance Department is an independent function from the operational units, in charge of assisting all members of the Company in complying with the relevant obligations under all applicable legislation and regulations. The Compliance Department is responsible for ensuring that arrangements are adequate to minimize and mitigate all identified compliance risks.

The Compliance Department interacts with regulatory bodies and authorities, monitoring trends and changes in regulations and sharing information and collaborating with regulators to manage reputational and compliance risks. It also engages in a variety of activities and processes to identify, assess, control, measure, mitigate, monitor and report compliance risks across the Company as a part of its oversight and administration of the Compliance Plan. The approach used by the Compliance department in drafting the Compliance Plan is "risk-based", i.e. based on the overall evaluation of compliance risks linked to the objectives of the business and changes in the law and regulations. The Compliance Plan is drawn up annually and submitted to the Board of Directors of MIL for their approval and to the Group's Compliance Department for noting.

The MIL Compliance Manual provides an overview of the Compliance activities such as role of the compliance officer, compliance monitoring undertaken, types of compliance risk and compliance management process. The Compliance Department is empowered with full responsibility and authority to develop and enforce the policies and procedures contained in the Compliance Manual and will be in a position of sufficient authority to compel others to adhere to such policies and procedures.

Document Name	Document Description			
AML and CTF Policy	Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Policy sets out how MIL complies with the Criminal Justice (Money Laundering and Terrorist Offences) Act 2010.			
Compliance Manual	Compliance Manual sets out the compliance policies, principles, and procedures which have been implemented by MIL. This document is specific to MIL and is maintained by the Compliance Department.			
Conflicts of Interest Policy	Conflicts of Interest Policy sets out the arrangements which MIL has put in place to ensure that the potential for conflicts of interest are suitability and appropriately managed. This document is specific to MIL and is maintained by the Compliance Department.			
Third Party Management Framework (formerly Due diligence	The principles within the framework outlines the process surrounding the selection and on-going monitoring of service providers from their appointment to termination of the agreement			
outsourcing policy) Data Protection Policy	This policy outlines the principles, rules and obligations of the Company to comply with data protection requirements			
Personal Account Dealing Policy	Personal Account Dealing Policy sets out the restrictions in relation to personal account trading which are imposed on staff.			

The following is a description of some of the key MIL Compliance Policies:

The due diligence outsourcing policy has been replaced by the Third-Party Management Framework. The principles within the framework are the same where it outlines the process surrounding the selection and on-going monitoring

of service providers from their appointment to termination of the agreement Since the last update there have been changes to the business plans, changes to regulations etc however no significant structural changes have taken place.

The Compliance Officer also supervises activities so as to monitor and control the trade compliance risks connected with the Company's investment activities. The Compliance Officer also cooperates with the Group Risk and Compliance functions.

B.5 Internal Audit Function

MIL Internal Audit Function is independent of business management activities. It is not involved directly in revenue generation, or in the management and financial performance of any business line. Internal auditors have neither direct responsibility for, nor authority over, any of the activities they review. Nor does their review and appraisal relieve others of their responsibilities.

The Function reports functionally to the Audit Committee and administratively to the CEO.

The main responsibilities include:

- execution of a risk-based audit plan approved annually by the Audit Committee and the Board;
- distributing audit reports to those in the company who are required to take corrective actions;
- working independently and objectively to assess whether the risk management, governance and internal control processes are appropriately designed and operate effectively; and,
- preparing quarterly reports for the Audit Committee summarising audit activity in the quarter, identifying
 material weaknesses in the internal controls environment, recommendations to remedy material weaknesses
 and updates on previously reported findings.

The Audit Committee:

- annually reviews and approves the Internal Audit Policy, where the purpose, scope authority and responsibilities of the Function are set out;
- reviews and recommends the appointment/removal of the Head of Internal Audit Function to the Board;
- annually assesses the performance and the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function; and,
- annually reviews and approves the function's organisational and reporting structure, budget and resources.

The Function maintains direct and unrestricted access to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Audit Committee has the authority to promote independence, and make sure audit coverage is broad and audit reports are properly considered.



B.6 Actuarial Function

The Actuarial Function is outsourced to Milliman via an engagement letter and the pre-approved Control function PCF48 position of "the Head of Actuarial Function (HOAF)" is held by a senior actuary within Milliman. The HOAF reports directly to the Board of Directors. The majority of the work carried out by the HoAF is required in order for the Company to comply with the relevant solvency regulations and the Domestic Actuarial Regime and Related Governance Requirements under the Solvency II regulation issued by the Central Bank of Ireland and to comply with the relevant actuarial standards of practice issued by the Society of Actuaries in Ireland.

The actuarial function is required to:

- Co-ordinate the calculation of technical provisions;
- Ensure the appropriateness of the methodologies and underlying models used as well as the assumptions made in the calculation of technical provisions;
- Assess the sufficiency and quality of the data used in the calculation of technical provisions;
- Compare best estimates against experience;
- Inform the Board of the reliability and adequacy of the calculation of technical provisions;
- Oversee the calculation of technical provisions in cases where there is insufficient data quality;
- Express an opinion on the overall underwriting policy;
- Express an opinion on the adequacy of reinsurance arrangements; and
- Contribute to the effective implementation of the risk-management system, in particular with respect to the risk modelling underlying the calculation of the capital requirements and to the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment.

The calculation of the Technical Provision is outsourced to Mediolanum Vita, a Group Company.

B.7 Outsourcing/ Service Provision

Due to its nature, scale and complexity of its business activities, MIL may enter into service agreements with third parties, where appropriate, in order to assist the Company to achieve its business objectives by delivering a consistent and quality service to its policyholders. Mediolanum's Third-Party Management Framework describes the arrangements and oversight controls the Company has put in place over its outsourced service providers ("OSPs") and its Critical service providers ("CSPs"). MIL ensures that the potential risks arising from the delegation of activities or functions to third party service providers are suitably and appropriately managed in accordance with its legislative and regulatory requirements. In doing so, it describes MIL's process for the selection, monitoring and assessment of service providers - from inception to termination of the relationship - following a risk-based approach.

MIL incorporates the legislative and regulatory definition and indicia of "outsourcing" in Solvency II in its process for appropriately categorising the nature of its service providers, taking into account its business model. MIL identifies its service providers that perform activities or functions which are critical to ensure continuity in MIL's delivery of agreed services to policyholders.

The company maintains a matrix of its service providers classifying all of its service level agreements, highlighting in particular those considered outsourcing arrangements, and service agreements in respect of key or critical functions or activities. Where outsourced arrangements are in place in respect of critical or important functions or activities, MIL ensures that the terms of a written outsourcing agreement are consistent with its obligations under Solvency II and associated EIOPA guidance. Such a written agreement must also ensure that, irrespective of whether or not a service provider is located in the EU, MIL's supervisory authorities will be able to assess how it complies with its obligations. With regard to jurisdiction of services providers and / or outsourcers, all MIL outsourcing / service level provisions are EU based.

Mediolanum International Life dac

MIL performs a detailed pre-appointment examination of the potential service provider's ability and capacity (including any authorisation required by law where applicable) to perform the required activities in a satisfactory manner, taking into account MIL's objectives and needs. Such an approach helps to identify and manage any actual or potential conflicts of interest. The outsourcing process is assessed further by additional qualitative, quantitative and reputational checks in conjunction with the Risk department.

The primary core / critical services that MIL has signed letters of engagement/agreements with are:

- Distribution Agreements with Local Distributors
- Shared services agreement for foreign branch network
- Policy Administration Services
- Actuarial Services
- Investment Accounting and Corporate Accounting Agreement
- Support with Solvency II calculations for the Technical provision, ORSA and SCR calculations
- Investment Management / Cash Management Services
- Custodial Services

Critical Service Providers	Services Provided	Outsourced provider	Jurisdiction	Connected Group Entity	
Banca Mediolanum			Italy (EU)		
Banco Mediolanum	Distribution Agreements with Local Distributors	No	Spain (EU)	Yes	
Bankhaus August Lenz	-	-	Germany (EU)		
Banca Mediolanum			Italy (EU)	Yes	
Banco Mediolanum	Shared services agreement for Foreign Branch network	Yes	Spain (EU)		
Bankhaus August Lenz	-		Germany (EU)		
Accenture PLC	Policy Administration Services	Yes	Ireland (EU)		
Milliman	Actuarial Services	Yes	Ireland (EU)	No	
SS&C/DST	Investment Accounting and Corporate Accounting Agreement	Yes	Ireland (EU)		
Mediolanum Vita	Support with Solvency II Calculations for the Technical provision, ORSA and SCR Calculations	Yes	Italy (EU)		
Mediolanum International Funds Limited (MIFL)	Investment Management / Cash Management Services	No	Ireland (EU)	– Yes	
State Street Custodial Services Ltd	Custodial Services	No	Ireland (EU)	No	
Banca Mediolanum Anti-Money Laun	Anti-Money Laundering	Yes	Italy (EU)	Yes	
			Spain (EU)		
		-	Germany (EU)		

From 1st January 2021 Bankhaus August Lenz is no longer the distributor in Germany and a number of non-mediolanum distributors have been appointed.

B.8 Assessment of Governance

Reviews of the effectiveness of the Board and associated committees of MIL are carried out on a regular basis, taking into account the requirements of the Corporate Governance Code and Solvency II requirements.

Internal audits, external audits and PRISM engagement from the Central Bank of Ireland provide independent evaluation of the company's system of governance. Recommendations from these are considered by the Board of Directors and implemented proportionate to the business risks. The company also considers relevant Group guidance and implements Group policies and processes locally where applicable on a risk-based approach and ensures continued compliance to the Insurance Group methodology.

The results of the ORSA conducted during 2020 & 2021 show that the Company has sufficient capital to meet its Solvency II capital obligations in the event of a variety of reasonably foreseeable scenarios. Continuous Board engagement, various internal compliance reviews, audits of the ORSA process and reviews of the IT cycle (including data governance) all contribute to ensure an effective governance framework.



C. Risk Profile

C.1 Risks Covered

The MIL risk appetite framework articulates the risk capital of the business available for deployment in pursuit of its strategic objectives. It defines the type of risk which MIL is willing to take on, and the level of risk that is considered appropriate for each of the main areas of risk that the Company faces.

The Company is only willing to take the minimum level of risk necessary to carry out its business and to be profitable. MIL will not take on risks in areas where the risks are considered to be excessive, or risks where the consequences of failure are deemed to be too severe. As such, the risk appetite statement (as well as being approved by the Board at a minimum of annually) is subject to update for each instance of a material change of the company risk profile. Any deviations from the risk profile will be communicated to the Risk Committee for consideration and subsequently notified to the Board of Directors.

The MIL business model is supported by a robust risk management framework that ensures that risk is well managed and understood. This is facilitated through both a quantification and qualification of all risks and a culture that promotes the importance of the Risk Management Process. Determining the prevailing landscape within the company allows the Board and Risk Committee to assess MIL's appetite for each emerging risk and to ensure that all are managed consistently within the Risk Appetite.

The parameters and decisions of the Board with respect to the risk appetite of MIL, which are based on the calculations of risk-bearing capacity, are fundamental to the acceptance of risks. Through our business operations, we are able to effectively allocate our capital in light of opportunity and risk considerations. Crucial importance attaches to our risk management in order to ensure that, among other things, the primary risks remain calculable and even potential exceptional major losses do not have an unduly adverse impact on the result.

The Risk Framework and major guidelines and policies derived from it are reviewed at least once per year. In this way the company can ensure that we keep our risk management system up-to-date. The company does not utilise special purpose vehicles in conducting its business.

The below provides an overview of the material risk exposures the company anticipated over the 5 year business plan as a result of the ORSA conducted during 2020 and a description of how these risks will be managed.

The resulting metrics for both the basic and Standard Solvency Capital Requirement risk profiles¹ for MIL as at 31st December 2020 are:



The standard formula SCR risk profile mainly comprises market and underwriting risk. More specifically the material risks within these - Lapse and Equity risk, have been identified as the dominant components of the SCR.

¹ The more complete "Standard SCR" includes both a separate operational risk capital requirement and deferred tax metric which are calculated in addition to the Basic SCR

C.2 Insurance Risk

The Company's business is focused on Class III products with the aim of providing investment solutions of different risk profiles and time horizons to clients. Insurance risk is defined as current or prospective risk to earnings and capital arising from adverse developments in policyholder movements and expenses.

The main insurance risks which the Company is willing to accept, although with the objective of maintaining the risk exposure to within in the Risk Appetite Statement, are mortality and lapse risks which have been identified as part of the Company's Risk Classification Process. These risks are monitored by the Head of Actuarial Function and Risk Function. The insurance risks are taken into account when calculating the technical provisions of the Company which is outlined in the Company's Underwriting and Reserving Policy. This policy ensures amongst other things, that the company underwriting activities are consistent with the Risk Appetite, the risks arising from the insurance obligations are identified and that there is adequate premium income to cover expected claims and expenses.

The Underwriting Risk component of the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) accounted for 43% of the Total SCR (before allowance for diversification) as at 31st December 2020.

Insurance risks are mitigated through strict underwriting criteria, product design and the use of reinsurance in some instances. Assumptions utilised in the projections are determined using historical experience, or best practice where historical experience is not available.

The nature of the business written by MIL ensures that there is moderate mortality exposure given the relatively low death benefits provided. As most of the mortality risk is not reinsured the Company could be exposed to an increase in mortality rates for example due to a pandemic type event. The scale of the mortality risk at any point in time is linked to the timing of sales and market performance, as the death benefit typically increases when the fund value is less than the premiums invested.

Lapse Risk has been identified as a key risk for the company. An increase in lapses would reduce the Company's future income and this loss would be recognised immediately on the Solvency II balance sheet. There is also the risk that increases in lapses result in expenses being spread over fewer policies which could lead to the remaining policies not being able to bear the level of expense being levied on them. On the other hand, low lapse rates, for products that don't produce ongoing margins, could mean that the Company incurs expenses and mortality risks for a longer time period than was assumed in pricing with lower levels of surrender penalties being received.

Monitoring and controlling of underwriting risks are conducted via various methods including:

- Maintenance of a company Risk Register which is assessed on a regular basis and monitored via the risk framework process
- Lapse monitoring is conducted on a regular basis. Surrender penalties on some products are a key control of Lapse risk
- Product design and pricing aims to minimise adverse selection and use appropriate factors to differentiate between different levels of risk
- Lapse Risk is mitigated via the product design, including surrender penalties and policyholder bonuses
- Regular reporting highlights performance of key underwriting metrics
- ORSA process includes stress and scenario testing which is used to assess the risks under stressed conditions
- Experience investigations conducted and included in the ORSA process
- Mortality risk is mitigated through design and reinsurance
- Using reinsurance to reduce exposure to mortality for certain products

- Dashboards produced and provided to Senior Management / Board of Directors containing relevant metrics utilised in forming controls and mitigations for insurance risks
- Paid Up monitoring is conducted and included in the ORSA process

Assumptions and appropriateness of key factors which impact the Technical Provisions are monitored, including:

- Surrender rates and their change
- Expenses and expense inflation
- Paid up rate: the proportion of premium paying policies that convert to "paid up" status
- Contract boundaries and their appropriate setting
- Mortality rates and assumptions based on these
- Interest rates used and any other adjustments (for example volatility adjustment or matching adjustment)

In addition to the above, the underwriting policy considers

- The sufficiency of the premiums to be earned to cover future claims and expenses,
- Consideration of the underlying risks (including underwriting risks)
- Impact of options and guarantees included in insurance and reinsurance contracts on the sufficiency of premiums
- Effect of inflation, legal risk, change in the composition of the undertaking's portfolio, and of systems which adjust the premiums policy-holders pay upwards or downwards depending on their claims history (bonus-malus systems) or similar systems, implemented in specific homogeneous risk groups
- progressive tendency of a portfolio of insurance contracts to attract or retain insured persons with a higher risk profile

C.3 Market Risk

Faced with a challenging capital market climate, particularly high importance attaches to preserving the value of assets under management and the stability of the return. MIL's portfolio is therefore guided by the principles of a balanced risk/return profile and diversification. Market risks include equity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. Equity risk has been identified as a primary risk for the company.

The Market Risk component of the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) accounted for 51% of the Total SCR (before allowance for diversification) as at 31st December 2020 with the Equity and FX Risk module (excluding diversification effects) accounting for the significant majority of this.

MIL is exposed to Equity Risk via the sensitivity of the value of assets, liabilities and financial instruments to changes in the level or in the volatility of market prices of equities. The exposure comes primarily from index linked and the unit-linked invested in funds' assets held within the policyholder portfolio. The company has no direct equity exposure in the shareholder portfolio. The inherent risk is that the revenue stream is sensitive to the performance of the Assets under Management, and there is also exposure to the Unit Linked via traditional equity securities. The present value of future funds component of the Total Own Funds is highly sensitive to Equity Risk. A decline in equity markets would increase the cost of death benefit and reduce the fees that are Asset under Management based.

For unit-linked products, a decrease in equity prices will result in a fall in the fund management charges received by the Company.

The Company's exposure to changes in interest rates is primarily related to changes in the value of the shareholder's investments. Fixed Income securities are the asset class most affected by this risk factor. The majority of the portfolio includes government bonds denominated in Euro with very short maturity (less than six months residual maturity). There are also some secondary effects – a movement in interest rates will result in a movement in the fund value of

the insurance policies and this has an impact upon both the cash reserves and the fund management charges received by the Company.

The company is exposed to currency risk via the sensitivity of the value of assets, liabilities and financial instruments to changes in the level in, or volatility of currency exchange rates. The vast majority of unit linked investments are invested in funds whose underlying assets denominated in Euro. For a portion of the policyholder portfolio, non-Euro denominated currency exposure exists. This is primarily to GBP and USD. As such a depreciation of foreign currencies relative to the Euro will lead to a reduction in the value of these assets held. There is also minor exposure in the Shareholder portfolio where a residual amount of assets may be held for short periods of time for the purpose of structuring new products or dealing with redemptions from the Policyholder portfolio.

Monitoring and controlling of market risks is conducted via various methods including:

- Regular monitoring of market risk, which, together with the results of regular profitability analyses, could trigger consideration of changes to product design or pricing.
- Maintenance of a company Risk Register which is assessed on a regular basis and monitored via the risk framework process
- The ORSA includes stress and scenario testing which is used to assess market risks under stressed conditions.
- Monitoring of the FX exposure of the underlying funds is conducted by the Asset Manager
- For interest rate, treasury assets are restricted to a mix of high-quality short duration fixed income securities, and structured products generally have a maximum duration of less than 5 years and are designed to be held to maturity
- Currency, interest rate and credit risk in treasury assets are controlled via the Credit Risk policy which dictates the investible universe of permitted instruments

C.4 Credit, Counterparty Default & Concentration Risk

Exposure to credit risk whereby there is a risk that a borrower will default on any type of debt by failing to make required payments is inherent in the MIL portfolio. In addition, risk concentrations ("Concentration Risk") arise whereby there is additional risk exposure stemming either from lack of diversification in the asset portfolio or from large exposure to default risk by a single issuer of securities or a group of related issues. The counterparty default risk consists primarily of the risk of complete or partial failure of the counterparty and the associated default on payment through deteriorating credit worthiness. The policyholder is primarily exposed to these risks.

MIL is primarily exposed to concentration risk via particular geographical and counterparty concentration within the policyholder portfolio. This can also give rise to network credit risk amongst groups where high concentration exists

The Counterparty Default Risk component of the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) accounted for 6% of the Total SCR as at 31st December 2020 (2019: 7%), whilst spread risk (as contained within the Market Risk module) was 2% of the Total SCR (2019: 6%).

The company monitors the credit concentration, has limits in place to ensure sufficient coverage of concentration and credit risk, and has monitoring processes in place to ensure any concerns are highlighted. These are all contained within the Policies and Procedures underlying the monitoring of Credit and Concentration risk.

Collateral Management:

The default risk mentioned above is mitigated for the derivative portfolio through the implementation of a credit support annex which results in the company receiving collateral when there is an exposure in favour of the policyholder. Index linked products contain exposure to certificate/derivative securities that gain exposure to underlying broad equity indices. Within these derivative structures the maximum loss is limited to the purchase price of the instrument. To ensure credit risk mitigation techniques per the usage of derivative instruments, the company collateralises these instruments and conclude contracts only with counterparties of eligible stature. These contracts are valued on a daily basis with weekly collateralisation. This collateral is not sold or re-pledged by MIL and is governed by the Collateral Support Annexes (CSA) in place with the relevant counterparties. These CSA's contain further information on the terms and conditions associated with the collateral arrangements in place.

Monitoring and controlling of credit risks are conducted via various methods including:

- Credit ratings are an instrument used in the assessment of credit risks. The company utilises external rating
 agencies to provide relative information and where a rating does not exist for shareholder funds, then an internal
 credit assessment is conducted on the entity which is reviewed circa every 2 years and provided to the Board of
 Directors.
- To mitigate the risk of reinsurer counterparty default, credit ratings of reinsurance counterparties are reviewed on a regular basis. No derivatives are employed to manage company credit risk.
- A Credit Concentration analysis is conducted on certain products and this information is provided to the Distributors to ensure they are informed on the credit risk associated with the relevant portfolios
- Company credit risk is monitored on a regular basis via risk dashboards which are provided to the Board of Directors and internal Committees for review.
- A Credit Risk Policy is in place to ensure the company credit risk is maintained within its risk appetite.

C.5 Conduct Risk

MIL views any activities or processes that the firm might engage in which would jeopardise consumer protection, market integrity or competition as elements of conduct risk. Owing to the nature of MIL's business model and the fact that MIL presently has in excess of 147,000 policyholders, conduct risk is an issue which is ever present. MIL's core markets are Italy, Spain and Germany where it operates under Freedom of Establishment rules. Distribution agreements are in place in each of the key markets to facilitate the sale and intermediation of MIL's product suite. Compliance with these is managed via the company's process for monitoring critical outsourced providers.

MIL does not have an appetite for conduct risk however is cognisant that because this is not a risk which can be mitigated entirely, the approach taken regarding effective management of this risk is via the establishment of sound and adequate systems of governance and internal control as well as placing the consumer at the heart of our decision making.

MIL has implemented a Product Oversight and Governance Process to ensure effective management and mitigation of conduct risk. Naturally, this is an aspect of the business which requires a programme of continuous enhancement to ensure that the business continues to remain aware of emerging developments and best practice.

C.6 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises where a company is unable to redeem investments and other assets in order to settle financial obligations when they fall due. For Policyholder Assets, this risk is relevant in relation to the company's ability to sell assets at no significant discount. For MIL, there is no mismatch between the assets and liabilities as the Policyholder assets match the financial obligation to the clients (excluding any related death benefit). The company monitors the liquidity of the underlying funds that the Policyholder assets are invested in.

Liquidity risk management is supported by the Liquidity monitoring program in place, and for Investment funds underlying the Unit-Linked products, assurance of adherence to and compliance with UCITS / AIFMD liquidity requirements.

The Company has some liquidity risk in relation to the Italian substitute tax regime. Under this regime the Company pays 0.45% of the value of the Italian policies in force at each year-end to the Italian revenue as a prepayment of policyholder tax. The Italian tax asset is not substantial for the company. In 2019 this asset was circa €13.5m, and this has increased during 2020 to circa €22.2m. This item is noted within the ORSA process and its growth kept under review.

Monitoring and controlling of liquidity risk are conducted via various methods including:

- The Credit risk policy dictates the instruments permitted for investment of shareholder assets the company ensures they are highly liquid instruments with short duration and carry a low concentration risk
- The liquidity profile of underlying assets assessed within the MIL portfolio is conducted on a regular basis to ensure the Fund Manager is satisfied with such
- Stress testing is conducted on underlying assets within the MIL portfolio on a regular basis
- Dashboards analysing and noting the shareholder liquidity are presented on a regular basis to the Board of Directors
- The ORSA process also considers liquidity risk and carries out sufficient scenario analysis to ensure the Company has sufficient liquidity to meet cashflow requirements as per Solvency II requirements.

C.7 Operational Risk

The company defines Operational risk as the risk of loss arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, or from personnel and systems, or from external events. The operational risk management objective is to measure and monitor operational risks which could cause a disruption to business activities, damage to physical assets or may incur possible loss of capital, so that said risks can be managed appropriately and efficiently (accepted, reduced, transferred or eliminated).

The company has a regulatory requirement pertaining to having an Operational Risk Process in place and calculates an Operational Risk Capital charge via the Solvency II Standard Formula calculation.

The Operational Risk component of the Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) accounted for 6% of the Total SCR as at 31st December 2020 (2019: 5%).

The assessment of Operational Risk is facilitated through both the Risk Self-Assessment Process and Loss Event Collection Process, the output of which is to determine if the company requires holding of additional capital to complement that already prescribed by the Standard Formula.

Mediolanum International Life dac

In contrast to underwriting risk, whereby MIL enters in a deliberate and controlled manner in the context of our business activities, operational risks are an invisible part of our business activities. The focus is therefore on risk avoidance and risk minimisation. With the aid of a Risk Self-Assessment for Operational risk, we conduct a series of reviews and from these determine any remedial actions. Within the overall framework of operational risks, we consider, in particular, business process, compliance risks, outsourcing risk, information technology and business interruption risks.

Data quality is also an important factor with regard to operational risk and the company has acknowledged the importance of this key aspect. As a consequence, the company has established both a Data Governance Framework and a "Head of Data Governance" role with the overriding goal of our data quality management being the sustainable improvement and safeguarding of data quality within MIL.

The primary operational risks identified as part of the ORSA process for the business include:

- Outsourcing, IT and cyber security, Business continuity, Operational processing; Client, products and business practice and Fraud risk.

Monitoring and controlling of operational risk are conducted via various methods including:

- Risk and control assessments the "Risk Self-Assessment" framework within the company requires all teams to carry out a risk assessment which would highlight any operational risk issues that require remediation action when assessing the risk profile of the business
- Collation and review of all operational events and action plan implementation ensures mitigation and control of operational events
- Emerging risk process and related workshops are important to ensure the company is aware of the trends and evolutions on any potential emerging risks that may impact the operations
- The Solvency Capital Requirement includes an assessment and quantification of the operational risk exposure
- Communication and engagement with the business on operational risk aspects in various forms including presentations, committee dashboards, one-to-one training / engagement on the process are all tools used to ensure the risk culture within MIL associated with operational risk is harmonised
- The Operational Risk Policy ensures operates best practice with the identification, assessment and mitigation techniques utilised when mitigating operational risks across the business.

C.8 Strategic / Business Model Risk

Strategic risks derive from a possible imbalance between a firm's corporate strategy and the constantly changing business environment. Such an imbalance may be caused for example, by unclear strategic policy decisions, a failure to consistently implement the defined strategies and business plans, an incorrect allocation of resources or lack of foresight for business plan projections.

The company regularly reviews its business plan relative to its business strategy and adjusts the processes and resulting guidelines as and when required. With the approval of the MIL 5 Year Business plan the company has at its disposal a tool that assists them with the planning, elaboration and management of strategic objectives and measures and safeguards their overall perspective on the company and its strategic risk. In addition, the management of strategic risks is assessed annually as part of the monitoring of business process risks. MIL also has in place a Product Oversight and Governance Arrangements Process which ensures that there is oversight and linkage of the Product Development process to the business model and strategy.
C.9 Other Material Risks

Regulatory Risk

A change in the regulatory, legal or political environment may have consequences on the company's business model, operations and financial position. MIL is subject to regulation by the Central Bank of Ireland. However, as part of a Group Insurance Company, it also falls under the regulatory remit of Banca d'Italia is the lead supervisor for the group. MIL has branches in Spain, Germany and Italy and as such has a regulatory presence and obligations in each of those countries.

Although the Solvency II regime has now been implemented, it remains subject to future amendments to improve its operation and to better align approaches across Europe. MIL is cognisant of this factor and actively engages with third parties to ensure full understanding of any potential upstream regulatory changes.

Emerging Risks

Of importance to the company is also the risk associated with Emerging Risks. The hallmark of emerging risks is that they may not have a readily assessable value. Such risks may evolve gradually from weak signals to unmistakable tendencies. It is therefore vital to detect these risks at an early stage and then determine their relevance to the company.

For the purpose of early detection, the company has various aspects which encompass the Emerging Risk process – from engaging with the Investment Manager ("MIFL") in this area on a regular basis to conducting emerging risk workshops. The company has an emerging risk process which is formally reviewed at both the Risk Committee and Board. The analysis conducted is reviewed in order to pinpoint any necessary mitigations or actions that may arise or require addressing.

Climate Change Risks

Climate risk is an area that is coming under increasing focus from regulators with both The Central Bank of Ireland and EIOPA calling for firms to start considering this risk as part of their strategy. In addition, MIL is aware that climate risk poses both a risk and an opportunity for the company and is starting to pay closer attention to this area. From a risk perspective, MIL is likely exposed to the following forms of risks:

- Transition Risks: these relate to the risks and costs of the move to a greener economy. From MIL's perspective
 these likely manifest themselves via the risk of falls in the value of certain assets held directly by the company
 or in unit-linked funds. There is also a regulatory transition risk that regulations may have direct impact into
 companies' attitudes and strategies.
- Physical Risks: these cover the impact of climate change on areas such as extreme heat, drought, flooding and the associated impacts on demographics and insurance claims. In MIL's case, such factors may lead to an increase in mortality rates and also possible changes in other demographic assumptions such as (lapse rates, paid-up rates etc.).
- Reputational risks. If the company is viewed as not doing enough to minimise its environmental impact (via the investments it offers or its operations) then this could lead to falls in new business and increased lapses. This aspect is also to link with the capacity of MIL to react and to take strategic decisions to implement an ESG strategy and appropriate product policy.

MIL approach considers these changes as an opportunity to demonstrate its ability to offer green investment products, attractive and diversified solution that could lead to higher new business volumes and better retention.

C.10 Stress Testing & Scenario Analysis

Stress tests are conducted in order to be able to map both extreme scenarios and normal market scenarios for the purpose of calculating the capital required to mitigate against such events. In this context, the loss potentials for shareholder equity are simulated on the basis of already occurred or notional extreme events.

The parameters set for such stresses are determined by the Board of Directors and are directly linked to the company's risk-bearing capacity. The impacts of the stress tests are mapped directly to the capital requirements to determine if existing capital allocated provides sufficient risk coverage or if additional capital alongside the Solvency II regulatory capital is required.

The suite of stress tests conducted target key risks present within the portfolio at any one time. As such the stress tests performed will vary over time as the composition of the portfolio and / or business model changes. The results of the stress testing analysis form a key input into Risk and Investment decisions.

A further important component of the ORSA process is the forward-looking risk assessment. Here an analysis is performed which considers risks and extreme scenarios that could render the business model as non-viable. The analysis captures both quantitative and qualitative factors and provides a framework by which the impact of all identified events can be mapped to our business plan and capital requirements. The primary stress tests conducted in the recent ORSA review, assumptions / methodology and subsequent results / impact are outlined below:

Risk Category Concerned	Risk Type Associated		ORSA Stress Tests	Impacts
Operational Risk	Operational and Outsourcing Risk Solvency II Regulatory Reporting	<u>}</u> →		Event in relation to clients and products with operational risk charge, in details :
	IT (incl. Cyber Security and Data Governance)			- Business Continuity event
Conduct Risk	Complaints / Exceptions]	Assessment of Operational Risk Capital Charge	- Cyber event and/or Data Breach
	Product Customer Suitability Product Monitoring Distributor Oversight			- Outsourcing failure
Legal / Compliance / Reputational Risk	Compliance and Legal Risk	,		- Conduct Risk charge (1bp of AuM – similar to the Professional Indemnity charge for AIFs)
	Market Risk: Equity] [Stress Test ST04:	Interest Rate, UFR and Spread Shock.
			Stress Test ST05:	Market Risk : Equity & Currency stresses
	Market Risk: Currency		Stress Test ST06:	Combination of interest rate, credit, currency and market stresses.
	Market Risk: Interest Rate		Stress Test ST09:	Interest Rate: Parallel Shift, downward parallel shock to the curve
Financial Risk	Credit Risk (incl Counterparty Default)]	Stress Test ST10 :	Interest rate risk sub-module SII
	Liquidity Risk		Stress Test ST07:	Macro Event Shock : combination of the Mass Lapse stress with the Market stress and additional shock on expenses.
	Concentration Risk		Stress Test RV - L	Reverse stress test (Liquidity): Combines the Macro Event Shock with Pandemic Risk and an exceptional dividend which stresses Liquidity
			[· ·
	Mortality Risk		Stress Test RV - C	Reverse stress test (Capital): Combines the Macro Event Shock with Pandemic Risk and an exceptional dividend which stresses Regulatory Capital
Insurance Risk	Expense Risk Longevity Risk			
	Lapse & Paid Up Risk		Stress Test ST01:	Mass Lapse
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
Strategic / Business Model Risk	Strategic / Business Model		Stress Test SCPF:	Business Model – No New Business
Strategic / Dusiness Wouel Risk	Risk		Stress Test SC01:	Business Model – 50% Fall in New Business

C.11 Prudent Person Principle

Article 132 of the Solvency II Directive defines the prudent person principle. MIL considers this as being as much a behavioural standard as an assessment of judgements and investment decisions. In line with this principle, and embedded within the investment policy all MIL employees consider a number of risk indicators before entering into new investments to ensure that:

- Investments are of a suitable quality and security to meet policyholder liabilities;
- Assets are only invested in which can be suitably modelled and valued;
- Consideration is given to the duration, currency and linkage of liabilities when making investment decisions;

MIL has outsourced the Investment Management activity to MIFL which executes the Investment Management activity in line with the MIL Investment Risk Policy. The Investment Manager provides MIL on a regular basis information pertaining to its investment management activity. However, MIL still retains responsibility for the overall implementation of the prudent person approach.

The investment risk pertaining to Unit-linked policies is borne by the policyholders however the company has guidelines in place with the Investment Manager and monitoring controls to ensure investment of unit-linked policies is aligned with the terms and conditions provided to the Policyholder. These controls include but are not limited to:

- Detailed Investment Guidelines
- Key Information Documents ("KIID")
- UCITS Compliant Funds
- AIFMD Compliant Funds
- Investment Manager Risk Budgeting Framework
- Internal Controls developed in line with the PRIIPS & IDD regulations

For Treasury Credit Risk / Counterparty Default, Counterparties are selected by taking into account factors including the credit rating and reputation of each entity. Credit ratings are used as a way of properly identifying and managing the risk attached to a counterparty and MIL ensures only counterparties with a high enough credit rating are used. In addition, MIL uses multiple counterparties to avoid concentration risk.

For managing the liquidity risk, the investment assets are prudently invested taking into account the liquidity requirements of the business and the nature and timing of the insurance liabilities.

C.12 Any other disclosure

The Board of Directors is closely monitoring the financial and business impact on the Company situation in view of the continuing volatility of the COVID-19 outbreak on financial markets. In light of continuing developments, the Company has taken the following measures:

• Business Continuity Planning – The Company has taken measures to ensure that it is ready to apply contingency plans, including deployment of business continuity measures, to ensure operational continuity in line with regulatory obligations;

• Market disclosure and Financial Reporting – The Company stands ready to provide, as it has throughout 2020, any information required to its supervisory authority on the actual and potential impacts of COVID-19, to the extent possible based on both a qualitative and quantitative assessment on its business activities, financial situation and economic performance;

• Risk Management – The Company continues to apply the requirements on risk management and react accordingly to as to safeguard the interests of its policyholders.

The risk profile and risk appetite are updated periodically to reflect the business plan and risk environment. Monitoring and control enhancements are regular in nature to ensure the full breadth of the monitoring program in place to ensure these are in line with the business.

The company is able to report that it has it has implemented the necessary contingency plans to ensure business continuity and performance of all critical activities in line with the expectations of all stakeholders.



D. Valuation For Solvency Purposes

D.1 Assets

The valuation principles applied to the Company's assets are consistent with FRS 102 and FRS 103: Insurance contracts. The Company classifies its investments into financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, held-to-maturity financial assets, loans and other receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.

For ease of reference the Balance Sheet is presented in the Solvency II format:

As at 31 st December 2020.	with comparison at 31 st December 20	019 the Company held the following assets:
, 10 4 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 2 0 2 0)		

Asset Class 2020	Financial Statements Value	Adjustment Required	Solvency II Value	Explanations
Deferred Acquisition costs	346	(346)	-	(1)
Intangible Assets	108	(108)	-	(2)
Tangible Assets	117	-	117	(3)
Investments (Ex assets held for index-linked and unit- linked funds)	75,454	(23)	75,477	(4)
Assets held for index-linked and unit-linked funds	3,591,858	-	3,591,858	(5)
Insurance & intermediaries' receivables	462	-	462	(6)
Reinsurance receivables	-	-	-	(6)
Receivables (trade, not insurance)	17,090	-	17,090	(6)
Cash and cash equivalents	44,857	-	44,857	(7)
Any other assets, not elsewhere shown	25,220	-	25,220	(6)
Total	3,755,512	(477)	3,755,081	
All numbe	ers in €'000			

Asset Class 2019	Financial Statements Value	Adjustment Required	Solvency II Value	Explanations	
Deferred Acquisition costs	419	(419)	-	(1)	
Intangible Assets	192	(192)	-	(2)	
Tangible Assets	115	-	115	(3)	
Investments (Exassets held for index-linked and unit- linked funds)	82,970	(2)	82,972	(4)	
Assets held for index-linked and unit-linked funds	3,239,511	-	3,239,511	(5)	
Insurance & intermediaries' receivables	58	-	58	(6)	
Reinsurance receivables	-	-	-	(6)	
Receivables (trade, not insurance)	14,638	-	14,638	(6)	
Cash and cash equivalents	26,771	-	26,771	(7)	
Any other assets, not elsewhere shown	15,923	-	15,923	(6)	
Total	3,380,597	(613)	3,379,988		
All numbers in €'000					

- (1) **Deferred Acquisition Costs** there is no concept of deferred acquisition costs in Solvency II as the premium provision only allows for future expense cash flows.
- (2) Intangible Assets Intangible assets represent Software tailored to MIL's needs and some "off the shelf" software licences. To be consistent with Article 75 of Directive 2009/138/EC for Solvency II purposes these are valued at zero.
- (3) Tangible Assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation.
- (4) Investments (other than assets held for index-linked and unit-linked funds) these consist of:
 - Financial assets held for trading; and
 - Term Deposits with credit institutions, valued at the amount held at the year end
- (5) Assets held for index-linked and unit-linked funds are financial assets designated at fair value through the profit and loss and acquire this designation at inception. The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices for assets, at the close of business on the balance sheet date.
- (6) Insurance & intermediaries' receivables/Reinsurance receivables/Receivables (trade, not insurance)/Any other assets not elsewhere shown Other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted on an active market and that the Company has no intention of trading. Receivables, subsequent to initial recognition, are held at cost less allowance for incurred impairment losses. These amounts include withholding tax on technical reserves paid to the Italian authorities, which is expected to be reclaimed in the future on maturity of the relevant policies. These prepayments are recovered from tax payable upon policyholder's exit in the event of a gain on the underlying policy. The carrying amounts disclosed in the balance sheet for other receivables reasonably approximate fair values at balance sheet date.
- (7) Cash and cash equivalents Deposits with credit institutions, valued at the amount held at the year end.

There have been no changes made to the recognition and valuation bases used of assets unless disclosed above. No changes have been made to estimations used in the year-end 2020 financial statements nor have there been any changes made to assumptions and judgements used in the financial statements process.



D.2 Technical Provisions

VALUE OF TECHNICAL PROVISIONS

The following table shows the value of the technical provisions as at 31st December 2020 and as at 31st December 2019 for comparison. All business is classified as "index-linked and unit-linked" (Line of Business 31) under Solvency II².

Technical Provisions	2020	2019		
Unit Liability	3,591,584	3,239,340		
Best Estimate Liability	(187,987)	(183,903)		
Risk Margin	45,551	42,115		
Total	3,449,149	3,097,552		
All numbers in €′000				

METHODOLOGY AND ASSUMPTIONS

The Unit Liability is calculated as a whole, and the value of the liability is set equal to the value of units deemed allocated to policyholders and is matched by corresponding unit assets held on behalf of policyholders.

The Best Estimate Liability ("BEL") represents the projected cash-flows on the business. The projected cashflows are calculated using cash-flow projection models developed in Risk Agility an actuarial valuation model. Full policy-by-policy cash-flow projections are carried out, allowing in each case for the terms of the contractual policy conditions, the policy data as at the valuation date and assumptions regarding future experience. These cash-flows are then discounted using the relevant risk-free rates provided by EIOPA. A single deterministic projection is carried out.

The Company does not apply the matching adjustment, volatility adjustment or any transitional provisions in the calculation of the technical provisions. The Company does not have any material reinsurance arrangements and has not modelled reinsurance cash-flows.

The risk margin is calculated using the cost of capital approach set out in the Directive. The steps involved in this calculation are set out below.

- Firstly, the Solvency II capital requirement the Solvency Capital Requirement relating to non-hedgeable risks – is projected for each future year (until the expiry of all contracts) using risk drivers.
- The SCR in each future year is then multiplied by the prescribed cost of capital rate to get the cost of holding the Solvency II capital requirement in each future year.
- These cost-of-capital figures are then discounted to a single present value using the risk-free yield curve to determine the overall risk margin.

The key assumptions used in relation to the calculation of the best estimate liabilities are as follows:

- Surrender rates (including partial surrender rates);
- Paid-up rates;
- Maintenance expenses;
- Mortality rates;

² Note the Technical Provisions in QRT S.12.01 are presented slightly differently with the Unit Liability and the Best Estimate Liability from this table combined and presented as a single figure. This difference is purely presentational.

• Discount rates and investment growth.

Surrender and paid-up rates are based on MIL specific experience at a product level. Mortality rates are determined at a country level based on MIL specific experience. Maintenance expense assumptions are determined at a company level based upon company specific experience. Discount rates and investment growth rates are determined by the euro risk-free structure specified by EIOPA.

A number of assumptions were updated at year-end 2020. The impact of updating the surrender rate assumptions increased the BEL by $\notin 0.1$ million. The impact of the paid-up assumption change decreased the BEL by $\notin 0.2$ million. The impact of the new mortality assumptions decreased the BEL by $\notin 3.0$ million. There was a decrease in the yield curve over the course of 2020, which increased the BEL by $\notin 18.8$ million. The per policy expense assumptions decreased over the course of the year, which reduced the BEL by $\notin 7.9$ million.

UNCERTAINTY OF TECHNICAL PROVISIONS

Uncertainty arises primarily in relation to the key assumptions specified above and the development of experience against these assumptions

MATERIAL DIFFERENCES WITH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The table below outlines the technical provisions included in the Solvency II balance sheet relative to those included in the financial statements at end 2020 and at end 2019:

2020					
	Solvency II		Financial Statements		
Unit Liability	3,591,584	Unit Liability	3,591,584		
Best Estimate Liability	(187,987)	Technical Provisions - Life Assurance Provision	35,199		
Risk Margin	45,551	Technical Provisions - Claims outstanding	11,637		
Total Technical Provisions	3,449,149	Total Technical Provisions	3,638,421		
All numbers in €'000					

2019						
	Solvency II		Financial Statements			
Unit Liability	3,239,340	Unit Liability	3,239,340			
Best Estimate Liability	(183,903)	Technical Provisions - Life Assurance Provision	35,551			
Risk Margin	42,115	Technical Provisions - Claims outstanding	12,550			
Total Technical Provisions	3,097,552	Total Technical Provisions	3,287,441			
	All numbers in €'000					

There are significant differences between the Solvency II technical provisions and those included in the financial statements. Solvency II BEL reflects all future profits, whereas the technical provisions included in the financial statements contain a reserve to smooth the recognition of future bonus payments. The technical provisions within the financial statements are also floored at zero on a policy by policy basis and there are some individual products where additional positive cash reserves are held. No risk margin is held within the financial statements.

Claims Outstanding are considered under Technical provisions for Financial Statement purposes, but under Solvency Il they are included Provisions other than technical provisions.

The assumptions are generally consistent between financial statements and Solvency II, with the financial statement assumptions containing some additional margins for prudence that are not included in the Solvency II assumptions.

D.3 Other Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019 the Company recorded the following classes of liabilities for Solvency II purposes:

Liability 2020	Financial Statements Value	Adjustment Required	Solvency II Value	Explanations
Provisions other than technical provisions	11,637	-	11,637	(1)
Deferred tax liabilities	-	22,195	22,195	(2)
Insurance & intermediaries payables	4,833	-	4,833	(3)
Derivatives	-	23	23	(6)
Payables (trade, not insurance)	17,662	-	17,662	(4)
Any other liabilities, not elsewhere shown	1,621	(377)	1,244	(5)
Total	35,753	21,841	57,593	
All numb	ers in €'000			
Liability 2019	Financial Statements	Adjustment Required	Solvency II Value	Explanations
	Value			
Provisions other than technical provisions	12,550	-	12,550	(1)
Provisions other than technical provisions Deferred tax liabilities				(1) (2)
	12,550	-	12,550	
Deferred tax liabilities	12,550 -	-	12,550 22,182	(2)
Deferred tax liabilities Insurance & intermediaries payables	12,550 - 1,531	- 22,182 -	12,550 22,182 1,531	(2) (3)
Deferred tax liabilities Insurance & intermediaries payables Derivatives	12,550 - 1,531 -	- 22,182 - 2	12,550 22,182 1,531 2	(2) (3) (6)
Deferred tax liabilities Insurance & intermediaries payables Derivatives Payables (trade, not insurance)	12,550 - 1,531 - 16,673	- 22,182 - 2 -	12,550 22,182 1,531 2 16,673	(2) (3) (6) (4)

Liabilities, other than Technical Provisions, are prepared under the historical cost convention modified by the valuation of investments.

- (1) Provisions other than technical provisions this represents claims to be paid. Provision is made for the estimated cost of all claims notified but not settled at the balance sheet date (including death claims, surrenders, coupons and maturities). Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for in the same period as the related claim.
- (2) Deferred Tax liabilities this is 12.5% of all differences recorded between those assets and liabilities valued on a Financial Statements basis versus a Solvency II basis.
- (3) Other creditors arising out of direct insurance operations the carrying amounts disclosed in the balance sheet for other creditors reasonably approximate fair values at balance sheet date.
- (4) Other creditors and accruals including tax includes Irish and foreign taxes, withholding tax on Italian technical reserve and a balance relating to Collateral Lending, which is linked to a corresponding offsetting amount in Deposits, these are recorded at reasonably approximate fair values at balance sheet date.
- (5) Any other liabilities, not elsewhere shown accruals of €346k (2018: €419k) and Deferred Income Liabilities (DIL) of €377k (2018: €463k). There is no concept of DIL in Solvency II, therefore this is excluded.
- (6) **Derivatives** Negative shareholder liability have been reclassified to liabilities for the Solvency II Balance Sheet.

D.4 Alternative Valuation Methods

The Solvency II Directive sets out how to value assets and liabilities, other than technical provisions. It says that, unless otherwise stated, the default reference framework should be the international accounting standards, as adopted by the European Commission in line with Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002.

In most cases those accounting standards and Solvency II give consistent valuations. Our annual statutory financial statements are in line with FRS 102 and FRS 103. For our regulatory reporting we follow Central Bank guidelines.

In line with the amendments of FRS 102 and FRS 103, the Company has disclosed its financial instruments held at fair value to be on the basis of a fair value hierarchy consistent with EU-adopted IFRS.

For investments carried at fair value, we have categorised the measurement basis into a "fair value hierarchy". A fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

- **Level 1:** The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
- **Level 2:** Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable (i.e. developed using market data) for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
- Level 3: Inputs are unobservable (i.e. for which market data is unavailable) for the asset or liability.

For MIL, level 3 assets are when prices are valued based on assumptions or financial models and are received from relevant counterparties. The main assets which we consider level 3 relate to index linked. These assets are valued by the individual counterparties using their own internal models. MIL uses an independent third-party valuations provider who provides MIL with valuations, effectively benchmarking prices with those received from our external counterparties each month.

D.5 Any Other Information

The Directors have reasonable expectations, having made appropriate enquiries that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Directors have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial statements are authorised for issue.

The COVID-19 pandemic has created volatility in financial markets and economic uncertainty which has impacted individuals and businesses. The full impact on the Insurance industry is not certain at this stage. However, given the nature of the Company's business, the Directors does not believe that Covid-19 will have a material negative impact on the shareholder's funds or claims payments as can be seen during 2020 where there was no unexpected increase in surrender or death claims. New Business sales were lower in comparison to the prior year but this was mainly due to market conditions as it was difficult to structure attractive yields for Mediolanum Piu products, which was the main driver of new business in 2019. The recent volatility in financial markets impacted the valuation of the Company's investment portfolio in early 2020 but recovered at the year end, but there could be further volatility in the future. However, in 2020 the Company has not been materially impacted and given the unit-linked nature of the business any reduction in the value of policyholder assets will be offset by a similar reduction in linked liabilities with no net impact on shareholder's funds.

The Directors do not consider that there is any further information which should be disclosed regarding the valuation of assets for solvency purposes.

E. Capital Management

E.1 Own Funds

The Company classifies its own funds as tier 1, tier 2 or tier 3 capital depending on the characteristics of the capital. Tier 1 capital is the best form of capital for the purposes of absorbing losses.

The below provides a description of how the Company manages its capital and an analysis of the disposition and constraints over the availability of capital to meet risks and regulatory requirements.

The objectives of the Company in managing its capital includes the following;

- Ensuring that all capital management actions are consistent with MIL's Risk Appetite Statement.
- Ensuring at all times that MIL's own funds are correctly classified and remain within established guidelines and limits as laid down by the Central Bank of Ireland / Solvency II.
- Ensuring that the issuance of own funds is in accordance with the medium-term capital management plan.
- Ensuring that any statement in respect of dividends takes the Company's capital position into account.
- Identifying instances when distributions of own funds are expected to be deferred or cancelled.
- Preserving capital and where prudent contributing to the growth of surplus for the benefit of the shareholder.

MIL's own funds include paid up share capital, reconciliation reserve and capital contributions and have also been designated as Tier 1 unrestricted capital. The capital position of the Company and the composition of the Company's own funds will be monitored on a regular basis with regular reports to the Risk Committee and Board.

The following are the minimums / limits apply to own funds in terms of meeting capital requirements:

	Condition 1	Condition 2
Solvency test	T1 + T2 + T3 ≥ SCR	Tier 1 + Tier 2 Basic ≥ MCR
For SCR	Tier 1 ≥ 50% of SCR	Tier 3 < 15% x SCR
For MCR	Tier 1 ≥ 80% of MCR	N/A

The Company's capital management policy states that the Company will maintain a capital buffer in excess of its SCR to cover contingencies. It is intended that this buffer will enable the Company to withstand significant equity shocks and reduction in sales volumes without the need to raise further capital in the medium term. The Company undertakes an ORSA exercise at least annually, or when the risk profile of the Company changes. The ORSA exercise incorporates the business planning process which is typically considered over a three-year time horizon. This figure will be reviewed each year in light of the outcomes of the ORSA process and the preparation of any business / capital plans which could shed light on any potential capital shortfalls.

The Company was in compliance with capital requirements of the Central Bank of Ireland imposed by regulators and has met all of its capital management objectives throughout the financial year. Throughout 2020 MIL has maintained a ratio of eligible funds to SCR above the Solvency II limits and in excess of 150%, the Company's minimum limit in the Risk Appetite Statement. The Company's Solvency Coverage percentage at 31st December 2020 was 185% (2019: 194%).

The Company's total eligible Own Funds to cover the SCR and MCR at 31st December 2020 and comparison for 2019 are as follows:

	2020	2020	2019	2019
Basic Own Funds (All Tier 1 Items)	Amount	%	Amount	%
Share Capital	1,395	0.6%	1,395	0.6%
Capital Contribution	58,729	25.9%	58,729	25.9%
Reconciliation Reserve	166,766	73.5%	166,351	73.5%
Total eligible Own Funds	226,890		226,475	
	All numbers in €'00	00		-

Capital Contribution represents "Other items approved by supervisory authority as basic own funds", this was approved by the CBoI on 26th November 2016.

The reconciliation reserve at the year-end was €166,766k increased marginally from €166,351k in 2019.

The reconciliation reserve represents retained earnings and reconciliations adjustments from the financial statements Balance Sheet to Solvency II Balance Sheet.

	2020						
Reconciliation Reserve	FS Value	Adjustment Required	Solvency II Value	Explanations			
Retained Earnings	32,853	-	32,853				
Adjustments to Assets	-	(431)	(431)	(1)			
Adjustments to Technical Provisions	-	177,635	177,635	(2)			
Adjustments to Other Liabilities	-	(21,841)	(21,841)	(3)			
Forseeable Dividend	-	(21,450)	(21,450)	(4)			
Total	32,853	133,913	166,766				
Allnum	bers in €'000						

20	2019						
Reconciliation Reserve	FS Value	Adjustment Required	Solvency II Value	Explanations			
Retained Earnings	13,073	-	13,073				
Adjustments to Assets	-	(613)	(613)	(1)			
Adjustments to Technical Provisions	-	177,308	177,308	(2)			
Adjustments to Other Liabilities	-	(21,722)	(21,722)	(3)			
Forseeable Dividend	-	(1,700)	(1,700)	(4)			
Total	13,073	153,274	166,347				
All numb	ers in €'000						

- (1) Adjustments to Assets an amount of €345 for deferred acquisition costs and an amount of €108k for intangible assets is adjusted to financial statement equity balance to show on a Solvency II basis. Negative derivatives €23k were reclassified to liabilities in the Solvency II Balance Sheet.
- (2) Adjustments to Technical Provisions this adjustment to the reconciliation reserve shows the impact of the technical provisions being calculated under Solvency II principles (Best Estimate Liability and risk margin) and the Financial Statement accounting standards
- (3) Adjustments to Other Liabilities there is a €21,841k decrease on the Solvency reconciliation reserve in relation to liabilities other than the adjustments to technical provisions. A deferred tax liability has been included along with negative derivative of €23k and the deferred income liability of €377k has been excluded in accordance with Solvency II principles
- (4) Foreseeable Dividend Dividends to be paid out of current year profits. This amount was approved by the Board of Directors and is subject to Central Bank of Ireland approval before it will be paid out and therefore in accordance with the accounting standards not included in year ended 31st December 2020 financial statements.



E.2 Solvency Capital Requirement and Minimum Capital Requirement

SOLVENCY CAPITAL REQUIREMENT AND MINIMUM CAPITAL REQUIREMENT

The SCR and MCR figures at year-end are as follows:

Capital Requirements	2020	2019				
SCR	122,925	116,693				
MCR	30,731	29,173				
All numbers in €'000						

The SCR is calculated using the standard formula and the split of the SCR by risk module is as follows:

SOLVENCY CAPITAL REQUIREMENT (SCR)	2020	2019		
Underwriting Risk	75,018	70,543		
Counterparty Risk	10,743	8,354		
Market Risk	87,141	85,725		
Diversification Effects	(40,704)	(37,850)		
Operational Risk	8,287	6,591		
Deferred Tax	(17,561)	(16,670)		
SCR	122,925	116,693		
All numbers in €'000				

The Company does not use any simplified calculations or any company specific parameters in the calculation of the SCR.

The SCR is reduced to reflect the loss absorbing capacity of deferred taxes ("LACDT"). LACDT is set equal to the Irish corporation tax rate times the gross SCR, noting that the actual tax rate paid by the Company is slightly higher in practice because of taxation within the branches.

There are currently no capital add-ons applied by the Central Bank of Ireland.

MCR INPUTS

The inputs used in the calculation of the MCR are as follows:

- The technical provisions (excluding the risk margin) equal to ξ 3,404 million .
- The total capital at risk equal to €306 million.
- SCR amount as calculated for the Company. Details of the SCR amounts are set out above. The MCR is capped

and floored at 25% and 45% of the SCR.

The floor of 25% of the SCR applies for MIL at end 2020.

MATERIAL MOVEMENTS IN MCR AND SCR OVER THE YEAR

The SCR increased from €116.7 million at end 2019 to €122.9 million at end 2020, driven mainly because of an increase in the equity and lapse SCR. Assumption changes used in the calculation of technical provisions also gave rise to an increase in PVFP and hence, a corresponding increase in the equity and lapse SCR requirements.

The equity SCR increased mainly due to the increase in future profits in the year (decrease in the BEL) arising from new business and changes in assumptions. In addition, the equity exposure also increased. The mass lapse scenario is applied in the lapse SCR. A 40% mass lapse event at end 2020 would increase the BEL (i.e. reduce future profits) by €67.8 million. The lapse SCR increase is driven by the increase in future profits in the year (decrease in the BEL) and the fact that more Mediolanum Piu business is eligible to lapse at end-2020 compared to end-2019.

Management have developed a future action plan for mass lapse calculation to reduce expenses in the calculation of the mass lapse SCR. In addition, as expense savings of less than 40% are expected but as the calculation of the SCR assumes expense savings of 40% will be achieved, the company will hold additional own funds in addition to the SCR to cover difference.

The MCR increased from €29.2 million to €30.7 million driven by the increase in SCR. The MCR was calculated as 25% of the SCR at both year-ends.

E.3 Use of the duration-based equity risk sub-module in the calculation of the Solvency Capital Requirement

The company is not using this approach in the calculation of the Solvency Capital Requirement.

E.4 Internal Model Information

The company is not using an internal model in the calculation of the Solvency II Requirement.

E.5 Non Compliance with the MCR and Non Compliance with the SCR

The Company maintained capital sufficient to meet its minimum capital requirement and solvency capital requirement throughout the period covered in this report.

E.6 Any Other Information

The Directors do not consider that there is any further information which should be disclosed regarding the capital management of the Company.

F. Appendix 1 - Quantative reporting templates (QRTs) 2020

S.02.01 – Balance Sheet (000's) - 2020

		Solvency II value
Assets		C0010
Intangible assets	R0030	
Deferred tax assets	R0040	
Pension benefit surplus	R0050	
Property, plant & equipment held for own use	R0060	117
Investments (other than assets held for index-linked and unit-linked contracts)	R0070	75,477
Property (other than for own use)	R0080	75,477
Holdings in related undertakings, including participations	R0090	
Equities	R0100	
Equities - listed	R0100	
Equities - unlisted	R0110	
Equites unisted	10120	
Bonds	R0130	18,311
Government Bonds	R0140	18,164
Corporate Bonds	R0150	-
Structured notes	R0160	147
Collateralised securities	R0170	
Collective Investments Undertakings	R0180	
Derivatives	R0190	15
Deposits other than cash equivalents	R0200	57,151
Other investments	R0200	57,151
	K0210	
Assets held for index-linked and unit-linked contracts	R0220	3,591,858
Loans and mortgages	R0230	
Loans on policies	R0240	
Loans and mortgages to individuals	R0250	
Other loans and mortgages	R0260	
Reinsurance recoverables from:	R0270	
Non-life and health similar to non-life	R0280	
Non-life excluding health	R0290	
Health similar to non-life	R0300	
Life and health similar to life, excluding health and index-linked and unit-	D 0010	
linked	R0310	
Health similar to life	R0320	
Life excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked	R0330	
Life index-linked and unit-linked	R0340	
Deposits to cedants	R0350	
Insurance and intermediaries receivables	R0360	462
Reinsurance receivables	R0370	102
Komsurunee recervables	10070	
Receivables (trade, not insurance)	R0380	17,090
Own shares (held directly)	R0390	
Amounts due in respect of own fund items or initial fund called up but not yet paid in	R0400	
Cash and cash equivalents	R0410	44,857
Cash and Cash Equivalents	1/0410	44,037
Any other assets, not elsewhere shown	R0420	25,220

Mediolanum International Life dac

Total assets	R0500	3,755,081
		Solvency II value
Liabilities		C0010
Technical provisions – non-life	R0510	
Technical provisions – non-life (excluding health)	R0520	
TP calculated as a whole	R0530	
Best Estimate	R0540	
Risk margin	R0550	
Technical provisions - health (similar to non-life)	R0560	
TP calculated as a whole	R0570	
Best Estimate	R0580	
Risk margin	R0590	
Technical provisions - life (excluding index-linked and unit-linked)	R0600	
Technical provisions - health (similar to life)	R0610	
TP calculated as a whole	R0620	
Best Estimate	R0630	
Risk margin	R0640	
Technical provisions – life (excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked)	R0650	
TP calculated as a whole	R0660	
Best Estimate	R0670	
Risk margin	R0680	
Technical provisions – index-linked and unit-linked	R0690	3,449,149
TP calculated as a whole	R0700	
Best Estimate	R0710	3,403,598
Risk margin	R0720	45,551
Contingent liabilities	R0720	45,551
contingent nuonnies	10740	
Provisions other than technical provisions	R0750	11,637
Pension benefit obligations	R0760	
Deposits from reinsurers	R0770	
Deferred tax liabilities	R0780	22,195
Derivatives	R0790	23
Debts owed to credit institutions	R0800	23
Financial liabilities other than debts owed to credit institutions	R0810	
Insurance & intermediaries payables	R0820	4,833
Reinsurance payables	R0830	
Payables (trade, not insurance)	R0840	17,662
Subordinated liabilities	R0850	
Subordinated liabilities not in BOF	R0860	
Subordinated liabilities in BOF	R0870	
Any other liabilities, not elsewhere shown	R0880	1,244
Total liabilities	R0900	3,506,742
Excess of assets over liabilities	R1000	248,339

S.05.01 – Premiums, claims and expenses by line of business (000's) - 2020

			Li	ne of Business for:	life insur	ance obligations		Life rein obliga		Total
		Health insurance	Insurance with profit participation	Index-linked and unit-linked insurance	Other life insurance	Annuities stemming from non-life insurance contracts and relating to health insurance obligations	Annuities stemming from non-life insurance contracts and relating to insurance obligations other than health insurance obligations	Health reinsurance	Life reinsurance	
		C0210	C0220	C0230	C0240	C0250	C0260	C0270	C0280	C0300
Premiums written									1	
Gross	R1410			491,509						491,509
Reinsurers' share	R1420			5						5
Net	R1500			491,504						491,504
Premiums earned										
Gross	R1510			491,509						491,509
Reinsurers' share	R1520			5						5
Net	R1600			491,504						491,504
Claims incurred										-
Gross	R1610			182,140						182,140
Reinsurers' share	R1620			-						-
Net	R1700			182,140						182,140
Changes in other technical provisions										-
Gross	R1710			(351,949)						(351,949)
Reinsurers' share	R1720									-
Net	R1800			(351,949)						(351,949)
Expenses incurred	R1900			79,473						79,473
Other expenses	R2500	\succ	\geq	$>\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!$	$>\!$	\geq	\geq	\geq	\geq	
Total expenses	R2600	\succ	>>	>>	\triangleright	>>	\sim	>>	\geq	79,473

S.05.02 – Premiums, claims and expenses by country (000's) – 2020

		Home Country	Top 5 countries (by amount of gross premiums written) - life obligations			Total Top 5 and home country
		C0150	C0160	C0170	C0180	C0210
	R1400	>	Germany	Italy	Spain	
		C0220	C0230	C0240	C0250	C0280
Premiums written						
Gross	R1410		8,243	331,377	151,885	491,504
Reinsurers' share	R1420		5	-	-	5
Net	R1500		8,243	331,377	151,885	491,504
Premiums earned						
Gross	R1510		8,247	331,377	151,885	491,509
Reinsurers' share	R1520		5	-	-	5
Net	R1600		8,243	331,377	151,885	491,504
Claims incurred						
Gross	R1610		19,690	114,299	48,151	182,140
Reinsurers' share	R1620		0	-	-	0
Net	R1700		19,690	114,299	48,151	182,140
Changes in other technical provisions			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
Gross	R1710		8,861	(236,278)	(124,532)	(351,949)
Reinsurers' share	R1720		-	-	-	_
Net	R1800		8,861	(236,278)	(124,532)	(351,949)
Expenses incurred	R1900	9,022	2,374	45,007	23,070	79,473
Other expenses	R2500	\geq		>	\geq	-
Total expenses	R2600	\geq				79,473

S.12.01 – Life and Health SLT Technical Provisions (000's) - 2019





S.23.01 – Own Funds (000's) - 2020

		C0010
Basic own funds before deduction for participations in other financial sector as foreseen in article 68 of		\searrow
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35		\frown
Ordinary share capital (gross of own shares)	R0010	1,3
Share premium account related to ordinary share capital	R0030	
Iinitial funds, members' contributions or the equivalent basic own - fund item for mutual and mutual-type undertakings	R0040	
Subordinated mutual member accounts	R0050	
Surplus funds	R0070	
Preference shares	R0090	
Share premium account related to preference shares	R0110	1447
Reconciliation reserve	R0130	166,70
Subordinated liabilities	R0140	
An amount equal to the value of net deferred tax assets Other own fund items approved by the supervisory authority as basic own funds not specified above	R0160 R0180	58,7
Own funds from the financial statements that should not be represented by the reconciliation reserve and do not	K0160	
meet the criteria to be classified as Solvency II own funds		>
Own funds from the financial statements that should not be represented by the reconciliation reserve and do not meet the		/ `
criteria to be classified as Solvency II own funds	R0220	
Deductions		\sim
Deductions for participations in financial and credit institutions	R0230	
Total basic own funds after deductions	R0290	226,8
Ancillary own funds	10250	
Unpaid and uncalled ordinary share capital callable on demand	R0300	
Unpaid and uncalled initial funds, members' contributions or the equivalent basic own fund item for mutual and mutual - type	D0210	
undertakings, callable on demand	R0310	
Unpaid and uncalled preference shares callable on demand	R0320	
A legally binding commitment to subscribe and pay for subordinated liabilities on demand	R0330	
Letters of credit and guarantees under Article 96(2) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0340	
Letters of credit and guarantees other than under Article 96(2) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0350	
Supplementary members calls under first subparagraph of Article 96(3) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0360	
Supplementary members calls - other than under first subparagraph of Article 96(3) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0370	
Other ancillary own funds	R0390 R0400	
Total ancillary own funds Available and eligible own funds	K0400	
Total available own funds to meet the SCR	R0500	226,8
Total available own funds to meet the MCR	R0510	226,8
Total eligible own funds to meet the SCR	R0540	226,8
Total eligible own funds to meet the MCR	R0550	226,8
SCR	R0580	122,9
MCR	R0600	30,7
Ratio of Eligible own funds to SCR	R0620	185%
Ratio of Eligible own funds to MCR	R0640	738%
	r	G00.60
		C0060
Reconciliation reserve	D0700	249.2
Excess of assets over liabilities	R0700	248,3
Own shares (held directly and indirectly)	R0710 R0720	21.4
Foreseeable dividends, distributions and charges	R0720 R0730	21,4
Other basic own fund items Adjustment for restricted own fund items in respect of matching adjustment portfolios and ring fenced funds	R0730 R0740	60,1
	R0740 R0760	166,7
Reconciliation reserve	N0700	100,/
Expected profits	R0770	72,5
Expected profits included in future premiums (EPIEP) - Life business	R0770 R0780	72,5
Expected profits included in future premiums (EPIFP) - Non- life business Total Expected profits included in future premiums (EPIFP)	R0780 R0790	72,5
rotar expected profits included in future premiums (EA IFT)	N0790	12,5

1,395 1,395 166,766 166,766 58,72 58,729 \sim \times 226,889 226,889 226,889 226,889 226,889 226,889 226,889 226,889 122,925 226,889 226,889 226,889 30,731 185% 738%

Tier 1 -

unrestricted C0020

Total

Tier 1 -

restricted C0030 Tier 2

C0040

Tier 3

C0050

		_
	C0060	
\geq	$\left \right\rangle$	
$>\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!$	248,339)0
$>\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!$		10
\geq	21,450	20
\geq	60,123	30
\geq		40
\geq	166,766	50
\geq		
\geq	72,502	70
$>\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!$		30
$>\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!$	72,502) 0



S.25.01 – Solvency Capital Requirement - for groups on Standard Formula (000's) - 2020

		Gross solvency capital requirement	USP	Simplifications
	-	C0110	C0090	C0100
Market risk	R0010	87,141		
Counterparty default risk	R0020	10,743	\geq	
Life underwriting risk	R0030	75,018		
Health underwriting risk	R0040			
Non-life underwriting risk	R0050			
Diversification	R0060	(40,704)	\geq	\sim
Intangible asset risk	R0070		>	\sim
Basic Solvency Capital Requirement	R0100	132,198	$>\!$	>
Calculation of Solvency Capital Requirement		C0100		
	R0130		1	
Operational risk	R0130 R0140	8,287		
Loss-absorbing capacity of technical provisions		(17.5(1))		
Loss-absorbing capacity of deferred taxes	R0150	(17,561)		
Capital requirement for business operated in accordance with Art. 4 of Directive 2003/41/EC	R0160	122.025		
Solvency capital requirement excluding capital add-on	R0200	122,925		
Capital add-on already set	R0210			
Solvency capital requirement	R0220	122,925		
Other information on SCR				
Capital requirement for duration-based equity risk sub-module	R0400			
Total amount of Notional Solvency Capital Requirement for remaining part	R0410			
Total amount of Notional Solvency Capital Requirements for ring fenced funds	R0420			
Total amount of Notional Solvency Capital Requirement for matching adjustment portfolios	R0430			
Diversification effects due to RFF nSCR aggregation for article 304	R0440			
			-	

S.28.01 – Minimum Capital Requirement - Only life or only non-life insurance or reinsurance activity (000's) - 2020

Linear formula component for life insurance and reinsurance obligations

Linear forman component for me insure		mouranee owngation.	-		
		C0040	J		
MCR _L Result	R0200	24,039			
			_	Net (of	Net (of
				reinsurance/SPV) best	reinsurance/SPV)
				estimate and TP	total capital at
				calculated as a whole	risk
				C0050	C0060
Obligations with profit participation - guara	inteed benef	fits	R0210		\searrow
Obligations with profit participation - future	e discretion	ary benefits	R0220		
Index-linked and unit-linked insurance obli	gations		R0230	3,403,598	
Other life (re)insurance and health (re)insur	ance obliga	tions	R0240		
Total capital at risk for all life (re)insurance	obligations	8	R0250		306,075

Overall MCR calculation

		C0070
Linear MCR	R0300	24,039
SCR	R0310	122,925
MCR cap	R0320	55,316
MCR floor	R0330	30,731
Combined MCR	R0340	30,731
Absolute floor of the MCR	R0350	3,700
-	-	C0070
Minimum Capital Requirement	R0400	30,731

G. Appendix 1 - Quantative reporting templates (QRTs) 2019

S.02.01 – Balance Sheet (000's) - 2019

		Solvency II value
Assets		C0010
Intangible assets	R0030	
Deferred tax assets	R0040	
Pension benefit surplus	R0050	
Property, plant & equipment held for own use	R0060	115
Investments (other than assets held for index-linked and unit-linked contracts)	R0070	82,972
Property (other than for own use)	R0080	
Holdings in related undertakings, including participations	R0090	
Equities	R0100	
Equities - listed	R0110	
Equities - unlisted	R0120	
Bonds	R0130	27,426
Government Bonds	R0140	26,834
Corporate Bonds	R0150	-
Structured notes	R0160	592
Collateralised securities	R0170	
Collective Investments Undertakings	R0180	
Derivatives	R0190	1
Deposits other than cash equivalents	R0200	55,545
Other investments	R0210	
Assets held for index-linked and unit-linked contracts	R0220	3,239,511
Loans and mortgages	R0230	
Loans on policies	R0240	
Loans and mortgages to individuals	R0250	
Other loans and mortgages	R0260	
Reinsurance recoverables from:	R0270	
Non-life and health similar to non-life	R0280	
Non-life excluding health	R0290	
Health similar to non-life	R0300	
Life and health similar to life, excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked	R0310	
Health similar to life	R0320	
Life excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked	R0330	
Life index-linked and unit-linked	R0340	
Deposits to cedants	R0350	
Insurance and intermediaries receivables	R0360	58
Reinsurance receivables	R0370	
		14,638
		,
paid in	R0400	
	R0410	26,771
		15,923
Total assets	R0500	3,379,988
Receivables (trade, not insurance) Own shares (held directly) Amounts due in respect of own fund items or initial fund called up but not yet paid in Cash and cash equivalents Any other assets, not elsewhere shown	R0380 R0390 R0400 R0410 R0420	26 15

		Colvenov II volvo
Liabilities		Solvency II value
	R0510	C0010
Technical provisions – non-life Technical provisions – non-life (excluding health)	R0510 R0520	
TP calculated as a whole		
Best Estimate	R0530 R0540	
	R0540 R0550	
Risk margin Technical provisions - health (similar to non-life)	R0550 R0560	
TP calculated as a whole	R0500 R0570	
Best Estimate	R0570 R0580	
Risk margin	R0590	
Technical provisions - life (excluding index-linked and unit-linked)	R0590 R0600	
Technical provisions - health (similar to life)	R0610	
TP calculated as a whole	R0620	
Best Estimate	R0630	
Risk margin	R0640	
Technical provisions – life (excluding health and index-linked and unit-linked)	R0650	
TP calculated as a whole	R0660	
Best Estimate	R0670	
Risk margin	R0680	
Technical provisions – index-linked and unit-linked	R0690	3,097,552
TP calculated as a whole	R0700	3,077,352
	10700	
Best Estimate	R0710	3,055,437
	D0720	42 115
Risk margin Contingent liabilities	R0720	42,115
Contingent natinities	R0740	
Provisions other than technical provisions	R0750	12,550
Pension benefit obligations	R0760	
Deposits from reinsurers	R0770	
Deferred tax liabilities	R0780	22,182
	D0500	2
Derivatives	R0790	2
Debts owed to credit institutions	R0800	
Financial liabilities other than debts owed to credit institutions	R0810	
Insurance & intermediaries payables	R0820	1,531
Reinsurance payables	R0830	-,
Payables (trade, not insurance)	R0840	16,673
Subordinated liabilities	R0850	
Subordinated liabilities not in BOF	R0860	
Subordinated liabilities in BOF	R0870	
	Dagaa	1 000
Any other liabilities, not elsewhere shown	R0880	1,322
Total liabilities	R0900	3,151,813
Excess of assets over liabilities	R1000	228,175

		Line of Business for: life insurance obligations					Life rein obliga	Total		
		Health insurance	Insurance with profit participation	Index-linked and unit-linked insurance	Other life insurance	Annuities stemming from non-life insurance contracts and relating to health insurance obligations	Annuities stemming from non-life insurance contracts and relating to insurance obligations other than health insurance obligations	Health reinsurance	Life reinsurance	
		C0210	C0220	C0230	C0240	C0250	C0260	C0270	C0280	C0300
Premiums written										
Gross	R1410			1,151,736						1,151,736
Reinsurers' share	R1420			5						5
Net	R1500			1,151,731						1,151,731
Premiums earned										
Gross	R1510			1,151,736						1,151,736
Reinsurers' share	R1520			5						5
Net	R1600			1,151,731						1,151,731
Claims incurred					1					-
Gross	R1610			331,807						331,807
Reinsurers' share	R1620			-						-
Net	R1700			331,807						331,807
Changes in other technical provisions										-
Gross	R1710			(1,078,685)						(1,078,685)
Reinsurers' share	R1720									-
Net	R1800			(1,078,685)						(1,078,685)
Expenses incurred	R1900			85,487						85,487
Other expenses	R2500	\geq	\ge	\ge	\geq	\geq	>	\ge	$>\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!$	
Total expenses	R2600	\succ	$>\!$	\geq	\geq	>>	\times	$>\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!$	\geq	85,487

S.05.01 – Premiums, claims and expenses by line of business (000's) - 2019

S.05.02 – Premiums, claims and expenses by country (000's) - 2019

		Home Country	Top 5 countries (writte	Total Top 5 and home country		
	Ī	C0150	C0160	C0170	C0180	C0210
	R1400	>	Germany	Italy	Spain	>
		C0220	C0230	C0240	C0250	C0280
Premiums written						
Gross	R1410		10,839	981,465	159,427	1,151,731
Reinsurers' share	R1420		5	-	-	5
Net	R1500		10,839	981,465	159,427	1,151,731
Premiums earned						
Gross	R1510		10,845	981,465	159,427	1,151,736
Reinsurers' share	R1520		5	-	-	5
Net	R1600		10,839	981,465	159,427	1,151,731
Claims incurred			• • • • •			-
Gross	R1610		17,751	271,233	42,823	331,807
Reinsurers' share	R1620		0	-	-	0
Net	R1700		17,751	271,233	42,823	331,807
Changes in other technical provisions						
Gross	R1710		(12,596)	(864,980)	-201,108	(1,078,685)
Reinsurers' share	R1720		-	-	-	-
Net	R1800		(12,596)	(864,980)	-201,108	(1,078,685)
Expenses incurred	R1900	9,313	2,903	48,857	24,414	85,487
Other expenses	R2500	$>\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!$	\geq	$>\!\!\!\!\!\!\!\!$	>	-
Total expenses	R2600	\geq	\geq	>	\geq	85,487



S.12.01 – Life and Health SLT Technical Provisions (000's) - 2019



S.23.01 – Own Funds (000's) - 2019

		1000	unrestricted	restricted		
		C0010	C0020	C0030	C0040	C0050
Basic own funds before deduction for participations in other financial sector as foreseen in article 68 of		\searrow	\searrow	\searrow	\searrow	\land
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/35		\sim			\sim	\sim
Ordinary share capital (gross of own shares)	R0010	1,395	1,395	\sim		\sim
Share premium account related to ordinary share capital	R0030			\sim		\sim
Initial funds, members' contributions or the equivalent basic own - fund item for mutual and mutual-type undertakings	R0040			\sim		\leq
Subordinated mutual member accounts	R0050		$\left \right\rangle$	~ ``		<hr/>
Surplus funds	R0070			\geq	\geq	\sim
Preference shares	R0090		$\left \right\rangle$			
Share premium account related to preference shares	R0110		\geq			
Reconciliation reserve	R0130	166,351	166,351	\setminus	\setminus	\times
Subordinated liabilities	R0140					
An amount equal to the value of net deferred tax assets	R0160		$\left \right\rangle$	\setminus	\setminus	
Other own fund items approved by the supervisory authority as basic own funds not specified above	R0180	58,729	58,729			
Own funds from the financial statements that should not be represented by the reconciliation reserve and do not		\searrow	\searrow	\sim	\sim	\sim
meet the criteria to be classified as Solvency II own funds		\frown	\frown	\frown	\frown	\frown
Own funds from the financial statements that should not be represented by the reconciliation reserve and do not meet the	R0220		\langle	\geq	\sim	\sim
criteria to be classified as Solvency II own funds	K0220			\sim	\sim	\square
Deductions		\geq	\ge	\setminus	\setminus	\geq
Deductions for participations in financial and credit institutions	R0230					\times
Total basic own funds after deductions	R0290	226,475	226,475			
Ancillary own funds		\langle	\langle	\setminus	\setminus	>
Unpaid and uncalled ordinary share capital callable on demand	R0300			\setminus		\geq
Unpaid and uncalled initial funds, members' contributions or the equivalent basic own fund item for mutual and mutual - type	R0310		\searrow	\sim		\sim
undertakings, callable on demand	K 0310		\frown	\sim		\wedge
Unpaid and uncalled preference shares callable on demand	R0320		\langle	\geq		
A legally binding commitment to subscribe and pay for subordinated liabilities on demand	R0330		\langle	\setminus		
Letters of credit and guarantees under Article 96(2) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0340		\langle	\geq		$>\!\!\!>$
Letters of credit and guarantees other than under Article 96(2) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0350		$\left \right\rangle$	\geq		
Supplementary members calls under first subparagraph of Article 96(3) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0360		\geq	\sim		$>\!$
Supplementary members calls - other than under first subparagraph of Article 96(3) of the Directive 2009/138/EC	R0370		\geq	\sim		
Other ancillary own funds	R0390		\sim	\sim		
Total ancillary own funds	R0400	~	\geq	\sim		
Available and eligible own funds		\sim		\sim	>	>
Total available own funds to meet the SCR	R0500	226,475	226,475			~ ~
Total available own funds to meet the MCR	R0510	226,475	226,475			>
Total eligible own funds to meet the SCR	R0540	226,475	226,475			
Total eligible own funds to meet the MCR	R0550	226,475	226,475	~ /		>
SCR	R0580	116,693	\sim	\sim	\sim	>
MCR	R0600	29,173	\sim	\sim	\sim	>
Ratio of Eligible own funds to SCR	R0620	194%	\langle	$\langle \rangle$	$\langle \rangle$	
Ratio of Eligible own funds to MCR	R0640	776%				$\overline{}$
		(100 c)	l			
		C0060		1		
Reconciliation reserve		\sim				
Excess of assets over liabilities	R0700	228,175	\sim			
Own shares (held directly and indirectly)	R0710		\sim			
Foreseeable dividends, distributions and charges	R0720	1,700	\sim	4		
Other basic own fund items	R0730	60,123	\geq	1		
Adjustment for restricted own fund items in respect of matching adjustment portfolios and ring fenced funds	R0740		\geq	1		
Reconciliation reserve	R0760	166,351	\geq			
			\sim	1		
Expected profits						
Expected profits Expected profits included in future premiums (EPIFP) - Life business	R0770	69,171	\triangleleft			
	R0770 R0780	69,171	\sim			

Tier 1 restricted

Tier 3

Tier 2

Tier 1 unrestricted

Total

S.25.01 – Solvency Capital Requirement - for groups on Standard Formula (000's) - 2019

		Gross solvency capital	USP	Simplifications
		requirement	USP	Simplifications
		C0110	C0090	C0100
Market risk	R0010	85,725	$\left.\right>$	
Counterparty default risk	R0020	8,354	$>\!$	
Life underwriting risk	R0030	70,543		
Health underwriting risk	R0040			
Non-life underwriting risk	R0050			
Diversification	R0060	(37,850)	>	>
Intangible asset risk	R0070		$\left.\right>$	\searrow
Basic Solvency Capital Requirement	R0100	126,773	$\left.\right>$	\searrow
Calculation of Solvency Capital Requirement		C0100		
Operational risk	R0130	6,591		
Loss-absorbing capacity of technical provisions	R0140			
Loss-absorbing capacity of deferred taxes	R0150	(16,670)		
Capital requirement for business operated in accordance with Art. 4 of Directive 2003/41/EC	R0160			
Solvency capital requirement excluding capital add-on	R0200	116,693		
Capital add-on already set	R0210			
Solvency capital requirement	R0220	116,693		
Other information on SCR				
Capital requirement for duration-based equity risk sub-module	R0400			
Total amount of Notional Solvency Capital Requirement for remaining part	R0410			
Total amount of Notional Solvency Capital Requirements for ring fenced funds	R0420			
Total amount of Notional Solvency Capital Requirement for matching adjustment portfolios	R0430			
Diversification effects due to RFF nSCR aggregation for article 304	R0440			
	·		•	

S.28.01 – Minimum Capital Requirement - Only life or only non-life insurance or reinsurance activity (000's) - 2019

Linear formula component for life insurance and reinsurance obligations

Lancar formula component for file insurance and	emburance	obligations	_		
		C0040			
MCR _L Result	R0200	21,594			
				Net (of	Net (of
				reinsurance/SPV)	reinsurance/SPV)
				best estimate and	total capital at
				TP calculated as a	risk
				whole	
				C0050	C0060
Obligations with profit participation - guaranteed bene	fits		R0210		\searrow
Obligations with profit participation - future discretion	nary benefits		R0220		>
Index-linked and unit-linked insurance obligations			R0230	3,055,437	>
Other life (re)insurance and health (re)insurance obligat	ions		R0240		>
Total capital at risk for all life (re)insurance obligations	5		R0250	>	294,706

Overall MCR calculation

		C0070
Linear MCR	R0300	21,594
SCR	R0310	116,693
MCR cap	R0320	52,512
MCR floor	R0330	29,173
Combined MCR	R0340	29,173
Absolute floor of the MCR	R0350	3,700
		C0070
Minimum Capital Requirement	R0400	29,173